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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738080-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in managing Family Takaful including investment-linked business
and all classes of General Takaful business. There has been no significant change in the nature of

the principal activity during the financial year other than as disclosed in Note 11 to financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
RM'000

Net profit for the financial year 8,191

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since end of the previous financial year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the financial year ended 30
June 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company during the financial
year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than
those disclosed in the financial statements.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738080-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the
financial year to the date of this report are:

¥YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy (Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director)

bin Tunku Muhiyiddin
Ms Loh Guat Lan {Non-Independent Executive Director)
Mr Masakatsu Komaita {(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Dr Aznan Bin Hasan {Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr Martin Giles Manen {Independent Non-Executive Director)
(Appointed with effect from
16 April 2018)
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat {Independent Non-Executive Director)

(Refired on 29 November 2017)
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 59 of the
Companies Act 2016, the Director holding office at the end of the financial year who had beneficial
interests in the ordinary shares and/or options over ordinary shares of the Company and/or its related
corparations during the financial year is as follows:

Shareholdings in which a Director has direct interests
Number of ordinary shares /shares issued or to be issued
or acquired arising from the exercise of options*

As at {Sold / As at
01/07/2017 Acguired exercised) 30/06/2018
Interest of
Ms Loh Guat Lan in:
Hong Leong Financiai Group 264,900 800,000 (604,900) 480,000
Berhad 5,081,823* 5,000,000 (3,881,823) 6,200,000*

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the Directors of the Company received or
became entitled to receive any benefit (other than the benefits shown under Directors' Remuneration
in Note 28 to the financial statements) by reascon of a contract made by the Company or its related
corporations with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is 2 member, or with a company in
which the Director has a substantial financial interest.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at anytime during the financial year, did there subsist any
other arrangements to which the Company is a party, with the object or objects of enabling the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate, other than the share options granted pursuant to the
Executive Share Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR

a) On 28 May 2018, the Board of Directors approved a Letter of Undertaking to be submitted to
Bank Negara Malaysia (‘BNM") to increase the paid-up capital by an additional of RM100
million by end September 2018. On 11 July 2018, the existing shareholders have injected a
total of share capital amounting to RM50 million according to its proposed share capital
structure after receiving the approval by the Ministry of Finance and BNM for a single Family
Takaful License to the Company.

The remaining share capital will be transferred according to stipulated timeline.
b) The Company has ceased to be a composite licensed takaful operator effective 1 July 2018.

In accordance with the legislative requirements under Islamic Financial Services Act ("[FSA™)
2013 Section 16(1), a licensed Takaful Operator can no longer operate under composite
license. A licensed Takaful Operator must only carry a single license on either a Family
Takaful business or General Takaful business. A composite licensed Takaful Operator is
expected to complete the conversion exercise and operate under single license latest by 1
July 2018, as stated in BNM's Conversion to Single Takaful Business Guideline issued on 15
February 2016.

As part of its internal streamlining exercise, the company is planning to complete the transfer
of general business to an existing licensed Takaful operator by 30 December 2018, i.e. within
six (6) months from 1 July 2018,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the process and structure used to direct and manage the business and
affairs of the Company towards enhancing business prosperity and corporate accountability with the
ultimate objective of realising long term shareholder value, whilst taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders.

The Board also reviewed the manner in which the Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM") policy document on
Corporate Governance ("CG") is applied in the Group, where applicable, as set out below.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738080-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A.

Board of Directors (“Board”)
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for effective stewardship and control of the Company and
has established terms of reference ("TOR”) to assist in the discharge of this respensibility.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Board established functions which are reserved for the
Board and those which are delegated to management. The key roles and responsibilities of
the Board are set out in the Board Charter, which is reviewed periodically by the Board. The
key roles and responsibilities of the Board broadly covers formulation of corporate policies and
strategies; overseeing and evaluating the conduct of the Company's businesses; identifying
principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage those risks;
and reviewing and approving key matters such as financial results, invesiments and
divestments, acquisitions and disposals, and major capital expenditure and such other
responsibilities that are required of them by BNM as specified in guidelines and circulars
issued by BNM from time to time.

The day-to-day business of the Company is managed by the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")
who is assisted by the management team. The CEO and his management team are
accountable to the Board for the performance of the Company. in addition, the Board has
established Board Commitiees which operate within clearly defined TOR primarily to support
the Beard in the execution of its duties and responsibilities.

To discharge its oversight roles and responsibilities more effectively, the Board has delegated
the independent oversight over, inter alia, internal and external audit function, internal controls;
and risk management to the Group Board Audit Commitiee ("GBAC") and Group Beard Risk
Management Committee ("GBRMC") respectively under HLA Holdings Sdn Bhd {"HLAH").
The Nomination Committee ("NC") is delegated the authority to, inter alia, assess and review
Board, Board Committees and CEQ appointments and re-appointments and oversee
management succession planning. Although the Board has granted such authority to Board
Committees, ihe ultimate responsibility and the final decision rest with the Board. The
Chairmen of Board Committees report to the Board on matters dealt with at their respective
Board Committee meetings. Minutes of Board Committee meetings are also tabled at Board
meetings.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the CEOQ.
This division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEO ensures an appropriate

balance of roles, responsibilities and accountability.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its smooth and effective functioning.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No, 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A.

Board of Directors (“Board") (continued)
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The CEO is responsible for formulating the vision and recommending policies and the
strategic direction of the Company for approval by the Board, implementing the decisions of
the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate strategies fo create competitive edge and
enhancing shareholder wealth, providing management of the day-to-day operations of the
Company and tracking compliance and business progress.

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs") are responsible for providing insights,
unbiased and independent views, advice and judgment to the Board and bring impartiality to
Board deliberations and decision-making. They also ensure effective checks and balances on
the Board. There are no relationships or circumstances that could interfere with or are likely to
affect the exercise of the INEDs' independent judgment or their ability to act in the best
interest of the Company and its sharehclders.

The Board observes the Code of Ethics for Company Directors established by the Companies
Commission of Malaysia ("CCM") which is available at CCM's website at ‘www.ssm.com.my'.
In addition, the Company also has a Code of Conduct and Ethics that sets out sound
principles and standards of good practice which are to be observed by the employees. A
Whistleblowing Policy has also been established by the Company and it provides a structured
channel for all employees of the Company and any other persons providing services to, or
having a business relationship with the Company, to report any concerns about any improper
conducts, wrongful acts or malpractice committed within the Company.

The Board comprises the Chairman who is an Independent Non-Executive Director, a Non-
Independent Executive Director, a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Company is guided by BNM CG in determining its board composition.The Board shall
determine the appropriate size of the Board to enable an efficient and effective conduct of
Board deliberation. The Board shall have a balance of skills and experience commensurate
with the complexity, size, scope and operations of the Company. Board members should
have the ability to commit time and effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities
effectively.

The Board recognises the merits of Board diversity in adding value to collective skilis,
perspectives and strengths to the Board. The Board will consider appropriate targets in Board
diversity including gender balance on the Board and will take the necessary measures to meet
these targets from time to time as appropriate.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738080-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE {CONTINUED)

A.

Board of Directors (“Board”) (continued)
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

Based on the review of the board composition in September 2018, the Board is of the view
that the current size and composition of the Board are appropriate and effective for the control
of the Company's business.

Board Composition
During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, ten (10) Board Meetings were held and the
attendance of the Directors was as follows:

Directors Attendance
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin {Chairman) 10/10
Ms Loh Guat Lan 10/10
Mr Masakatsu Komaita 10/10
Mr Martin Giles Manen (Appointed with effect from 16 April 2018) 4/4
Dr Aznan bin Hasan 1010
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat (Retired on 29 November 2017) 4/4

At the Board meetings, active deliberations of issues by Board members are encouraged and
such deliberations, decisions and conclusions are recorded by the Company Secretary
accordingly. Any director who has an interest in the subject matter to be deliberated shall
excuse himself from deliberating on the same during the meetings.

Supply of Information

All Board members are supplied with information in a timely manner. The Company has
moved towards electronic Board reports. Board reperts are circulated prior to Board and Board
Committee meetings and the reports provide, amongst others, financiali and corporate
information, significant operational, financial and corporate issues, updates on the
performance of the Company and management's proposals which require the approval of the
Board.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and Internal
Auditors. All Directors also have access to independent professional advice at the Company's
expense, in consultation with the Chairman or the CEO of the Company.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A.

Board of Directors (“Board") (continued)
Directors' Profile

YM TUNKU DATO" MAHMOOD FAWZY BIN TUNKU MUHIYIDDIN
Chairman/Non-Executive/lndependent
Age 60, Male, Malaysian

YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin received his BA (Hons) Business
Studies from the Polytechnic of Central London, Masters in Business Administration from the
University of Warwick, the Diploma in Marketing from the Chartered Institute of Marketing. He
is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, Malaysian Institute of
Management, and Malaysian Institute of Corporate Governance.

YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy is the Chairman of Hong Leong MSIG Takaful Berhad
("HLMT") and was appointed to the Board of Directors {"Board") of HLMT on 3 January 2012.
He is a member of the Remuneration Committee of HLMT and also a member of the GBAC
and the GBRMC of HLAH.

YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy is the Chairman of Deutsche Bank (Malaysia) Berhad and
an Independent Director of Hong Leong Assurance Berhad ("HLA™) and Hong Leong Asset
Management Bhd. He is also the Senior Independent Director of Telekom Malaysia Berhad
("TM") and the Chairman of VADS Berhad and a Director of Webe Digital Sdn Bhd, both are
subsidiaries of TM Group of Companies.

He was previously an [ndependent Non-Executive Director of Hong Leong Islamic Bank
Berhad and SapuraKencana Petroleum Berhad/Kencana Petroleum Berhad and a Non-
Independent Non-Executive Director of Malaysia Airports Holdings Berhad and Pos Malaysia
Berhad. He was also a Director of Ethos Capital One Sdn Berhad, Federation of Investment
Managers Malaysia, Energy Africa Limited and Engen Limited in South Africa.

YM Tunku Date’ Mahmood Fawzy draws on a wealth of governance, management, and cross
border experience in telecommunications, investment management and private equity activity,
oil and gas, marine and aviation logistics, corporate advisory, banking and financial services,
across several international locations including the United Kingdom, New Zealand, South
Africa and Malaysia.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A.

Board of Directors (“Board”) (continued)
Directors’ Profile (continued)

MS LOH GUAT LAN
Executive Director/Non-Independent
Age 53, Female, Malaysian

Ms Loh Guat Lan holds a Bachelor of Science in Nutrition Science and is the fellow member of
Life Management Institute (FLMI), Customer Service Management (CSM) and Life Office
Management (LOMA). She is also a Certified Financial Planner (CFP) and Registered
Financial Planner (RFP). Ms Loh has extensive experience in the insurance industry,
including agency management, branch management, and agency development and training.
She was previously the Chief Operating Officer (Life Division) of HLA and was subsequently
appointed as the Group Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer of HLA on 1 September
2009, Prior to joining HLA, she was in the employment of American International Assurance
Company Limited where her last position was Vice President & Senior Director of Agency
(Malaysia).

Ms Loh was appointed fo the Board of HLMT on 1 November 2009 and is a member of the
Nomination Committee of HLMT.

Ms Loh is the Chairman of HL Assurance Pte Ltd and a Director of MSIG Insurance (Malaysia)
Bhd, HLAH and Hong Lecng Insurance (Asia} Limited.

MR MASAKATSU KOMAITA
Non-Executive Director/Non-Independent
Age 56, Male, Japanese

Mr Masakatsu Komaita graduated from the Faculty of Literature and Sciences, the
Department of Economics, Yamagata University, Japan. He has over 31 years of experience
in the insurance industry, all of which were in MSIG, and his experience and expertise
encompasses sales promotion, sales planning of insurance as well as governance and
administration of international business operations.

Mr Masakatsu Komaita first joined Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited ("MSIJ") in
1986, and was promoted to Assistant General Manager, Insurance Flanning Department of
Ginsen Company Limited, a subsidiary of MSIJ in 2007. In 2010, he was appointed as the
Assistant General Manager, Government Business Development Department to lead the
bancassurance for life insurance in Japan Post Group before assuming his present position as
Assistant General Manager, Corporate Planning of Asian Life Insurance Business Department
in 2012. Mr Masakatsu Komaita was promoted {o the position of General Manager on 1 April

2014 where he was responsible for business expansion into Asian local insurance business in

Malaysia.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
{(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A

Board of Directors (“Board”) (continued)

Directors' Profile (continued)

MR MASAKATSU KOMAITA (continued)

Mr Masakatsu Komaita was appointed fo the Board of HLMT on 6 May 2014,
Mr Masakatsu Komaita is also a Director of HLA, a public company.

DR AZNAN BIN HASAN
Non-Executive Director/iIndependent
Age 46, Male, Malaysian

Dr Aznan Bin Hasan obtained his first Degree in Shariah from University of al-Azhar in 1994.
He has a Master's degree in Shariah from Cairo University with distinction (mumtaz), a Ph.D.
from the University of Wales, Lampeter, United Kingdom.

Dr Aznan is an eminent authority on Shariah and a known Takaful expert. He is an advisor on
a number of Shariah councils, regulatory bodies and institutions including Deputy Chairman of
the Shariah Advisory Council, Securities Commission of Malaysia, Member, Shariah Advisory
Board, Higher Shariah Authority, Central Bank of UAE, Member, Shariah Board of AAOIFI
{Accounting and Auditing Crganization for Islamic Financial Institutions) and President of
ASAS (Association of Shariah Advisors in Islamic Finance). He was a member of the Shariah
Advisory Council of BNM for two terms (2006-2008, 2010-2013).

Dr Aznan serves as a member of Shariah Board, FNB Bank (South Africa), ABSA Islamic
Bank (South Africa), Yasaar Limited (London), Khalij Istamic (UK) Limited {London), HSBC
Amanah (Dubai), Cardoba Capital (Dubai), Amanah Raya Berhad, Amanah Raya Asset
Management, Employee Provident Fund (EPF) as well as other financial institutions and
corporate bodies locally and internationally. He is the Chairman of the Shariah Committee of
Maybank Islamic Berhad, Maybank Islamic Asset Management Sdn Bhd and Bank
Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad.

He is also a Shariah consultant to Maybank Investment Bank Berhad and Hong Lecng [slamic
Bank Berhad. He is a registered Shariah Advisor for the Islamic Unit Trust Schemes and
Islamic Securities (Sukuk), Securities Commission of Malaysia. He is also a member of
Shariah Supervisory Board and Investment Committee, Waqaf Foundation, a corporate entity
formed by the Government to oversee the application of Wagqaf in Malaysia. He is also
advising Zakat Centre of Selangor, a Zakat entity formed by the State of Selangor to oversee
the application of zakat in the state of Selangor.



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 7380980-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A,

Board of Directors (“Board”) (continued)
Directors’ Profile {continued)
DR AZNAN BIN HASAN (continued)

In addition, Dr Aznan is an Associate Professar in Islamic law, Institute of Islamic Banking and
Finance (IliBF) and the former Head of Islamic Law Department, Ahmad [brahim Kulliyyah of
Laws, International Islamic University Malaysia.

Dr Aznan was appointed to the Board of HLMT on 28 November 2016 and he is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of HLMT. He is also a
member of the GRRMC of HLAH.

MR MARTIN GILES MANEN
Non-Executive Director/independent
Age 63, Male, Malaysian

Mr Martin Giles Manen is a Chartered Accountant and a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants and the Malaysian [nstitute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Martin Manen was appointed to the Board of HLMT on 16 April 2018. He is a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of HLMT, and also a member of
the GBAC of HLAH.

Mr Martin Manen had served more than 21 years with Sime Darby Group from January 1986
to July 2007, holding various senior roles, including Executive Director, Group Tax Controller,
Group Company Secretary and Group Finance Director. During his term as Group Finance
Director and Executive Director of Sime Darby Berhad, he had full responsibility for the entire
finance function within the Sime Darby Group, encompassing finance & accounting, corporate
finance & planning, and information technology, with all of the divisional finance directors
reporting to him. He also had served as a member of the Malaysian Accounting Standards
Board, the Executive Committee of the International Fiscal Association (Malaysian Branch),
the Task Force on the formation of an Audit Oversight Board chaired by the Securities
Commission ("SC") and the Accounting Technical Panel of the SC.

Mr Martin Manen is presently an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Audit
Committee of Heineken Malaysia Berhad, a company listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hong Leong
Investment Bank Berhad, a public company.

-10-



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 7380390-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A

Board of Directors (“Beoard”) (continued)
Directors' Profile {continued)
Directors' Training

The Company recognises the importance of continuous professional development and training
for its Directors.

The Company is guided by a Directors’ Training Policy, which covers an Induction Programme
and Continuing Professional Development ("CPD") for Directors of the Company. The
Induction Programme is organised for newly appointed Directors to assist them to familiarise
and to get acquainted with the Company's business, governance process, roles and
responsibilities as Director of the Company.

The CPD encompasses areas related to the industry or business of the Company,
governance, risk management and regulations through a combination of courses and
conferences. A training budget is allocated for Directors' training programmes.

The Company reguiarly organises in-house programmes, briefings and updates by its in-
house professionals. The Directors are also encouraged to attend seminars and briefings in
order to keep themselves abreast with the latest developments in the business environment
and to enhance their skills and knowledge. Directors are kept informed of available training
pregrammes on a regular basis.

The Company has prepared for the use of its Directors, a Director Manual which highlights,
amongst others, the major duties and responsibilities of a Director vis-a-vis various laws,
regulations and guidelines governing the same.

In assessing the training needs of Directors, the Board has determined that appropriate
training programmes covering matters on corporate governance, finance, legal, risk
management and/or statutory/regulatory compliance, be recommended and arranged for the
Directors to enhance their contributions to the Board.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, the Directors received regular briefings and
updates on the Company's businesses, operations, risk management, internal controls,
corporate governance, finance and any changes to relevant legislation, rules and regulations
from in-house professionals. The Company also organised an in-house programme for its
Directors and senior management.

The Directors of the Company have also attended various programmes and forums facilitated

by externai professionals in accordance with their respective needs in discharging their duties
as Directors.

-11-



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

A,

Board of Directors (“Board”) (continued)

Directors’ Training {continued)

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, the Directors of the Company, collectively or on
their own, attended various training programmes, seminars, briefings and/or workshops
including:

Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance Update and Cyber Security Awareness
Session

World Capital Markets Symposium 2018 - Renaissance of Capitalism : Markets for
Growth

Briefing on Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards 17 (MFRS 17)

Foreign Exchange Administration

Good Governance: Challenges for the ASEAN Community

BNM & PIDM Industry Seminar on Recovery and Resolution (RRP)

Khazanah Megatrends

Directors' Duties and Liabilities under the Malaysian Companies Act 2016

FIDE Forum - 5th Annual Dialogue with the Deputy Governor of BNM

Digital Transformation and Impact to the Businesses

Muzakarah KLIFF

Kuala Lumpur International Islamic Finance Forum

AAQIFI World Bank 12th Annual Conference

Digital Finance Conference 2017

Shariah Fintech Forum

Towards Understanding Wagaf and its Potential Applications in Islamic Finance

Value Based Intermediation, Liga', Association of Shariah Scholars in Islamic Finance
8th Securities Commission - Oxford Centre for Islamic Studies (OCIS) Roundtable -
Theme: Enhancing the Value of Islamic Capital Market through Social and Impact
Investment

World Takaful Conference 2018

Board Committee

Board Committees have been established by the Board to assist in the discharge of its duties.

(@

GBAC of HLAH

The GBAC was established under HLAH effective from 13 December 2017, subsequent
to the approval by BNM on 28 September 2017 for the centralisation of the Audit
Committees of HLAH, HLA and HLMT at HLAH, being the financial holding company.
The Board Audit and Risk Management Committee ("BARMC") of HLMT was disbanded
on 13 December 2017 with the establishment of the GBAC and GBRMC under HLAH.

The financial reporting and internal control system of the Company is overseen by the
GBAC, which comprises the following members:

-12-



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
B. Board Committee (continued)
(a) GBAC of HLAH {continued)

Ms Lim Tiau Kien

{Chairman of GBAC and Independent Non-Executive Director of HLAH)
{(Appointed as GBAC Chairman on 13 December 2017)
YBhg Dato Siow Kim Lun @ Siow Kim Lin

{Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director of HLAH and Independent

Non-Executive Director of HLA)

{Appointed as GBAC member on 13 Decemnber 2017)
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin

(Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director of HLMT and Independent

Non-Executive Director of HLA)

(Appointed as GBAC member on 13 December 2017)
Ms Shalet Marian

(Independent Non-Executive Director of HLA)

(Appointed as GBAC member on 13 December 2017)
Mr Martin Giles Manen

{Independent Non-Executive Director of HLMT)

(Appointed as GBAC member on 16 April 2018)

Prior to the establishment of GBAC, the financial reporting and control system of the
Company was overseen by the BARMC. The BARMC comprised the following

members:

YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy {Independent Non-Executive Director)
bin Tunku Muhiyiddin

Dr Aznan bhin Hasan {Independent Non-Executive Director)

Encik Mustapha bin Hamat {Independent Non-Executive Director)

(Retired on 29 November 2017)
Terms of Reference

The primary functions and responsibilities of the GBAC are set out in the terms of
reference as follows:

External Audit

+ To make recommendations to the Beoard of HLAH and its subsidiaries on the
appointment, removal and remuneration of the external auditor.

« To review the ferms of engagement and the audit plan prior to engaging the external
auditors and/or re-appointment of the external auditor.

+  To monitor and assess the independence of the external auditor, including the
approval of non-audit services by the external auditor.

-13-



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorperated in Malaysia)

1
5

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CCNTINUED)
B. Board Committee {continued)
(a) GBAC of HLAH (continued)

Terms of Reference (continued)

Extarnal Audit {(continued)

+ To review the assistance given by the officers of the HLAH and its subsidiaries to

the external auditor.

+ To maintain regular, timely, open and honest communication with the external
auditor, and requiring the external auditor to report to the GBAC on significant

matters.

+ To review the report of the external auditor, including any significant matters, and to
ensure that management has taken the necessary corrective actions in a timely

manner to address the external audit findings and recommendations.

* To review third-party opinions on the design and effectiveness of the Group's

internal control framework.

Financial Reporting

+ To review the accuracy and adequacy of the chairman’s statement (if any) in the
directors’ report, corporate governance disclosures, interim financial reports and

annual financial statements.

Related Party/Connected Party Transactions

+ To review and update the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries on any related party

transactions that may arise within the Group.

» To monitor compliance with the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries' conflict of

interest policy.

Internal Audit

'+ To review and approve the adequacy of the internal audit scope, procedures, plan
and assess the performance and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
+ To review the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and risk management

processes.

+ To review reports and significant findings by internal audit function, including any
findings of internal investigations, and to ensure that management has taken the
necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to address control weaknesses, non
compliance with laws, regulatory requirements, policies and other problems

identified by the internal audit and other control functions.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
B. Board Committee (continued)
(a) GBAC of HLAH (continued)

Terms of Reference (continued)

Internal Audit (continued)

+ To review reports and findings issued by regulatory authorities, and to check that
management has taken the necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to
address control weaknesses, non-compliance with laws, regulatory requirements,

policies and other problems identified by the regulatory autheorities.

+ To support the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries in meeting the expectations on
internal audit management as set out in BNM's policy document, “Guidelines on

Internal Audit Function of Licensed Institutions”.

« To decide on the appointment, remuneration, appraisal, transfer and dismissal of
the Head of Insurance Audit, and to provide oversight on the adequacy of resources
and remuneration of the internal auditors. This includes a regular review to
determine whether the internal audit function has appropriate standing within the

Group to undertake its activities independently and objectively.

* To engage privately with the Head of Insurance Audit on a regular basis (ard in any
case at least twice annually) to provide the opportunity for the Head of Insurance

Audit to discuss issues faced by the internal audit function.

« To review the Audit Charter of HLAH and its subsidiaries and recommend for

respective Board's approval.

« Other audit functions as may be agreed to by the GBAC and the Board of HLAH and

its subsidiaries.

Group Governance

+ Noted that:

a) Hong Leong Financial Group Berhad ("HLFG"} as an apex entity has overall
responsibility for ensuring the establishment and operation of a clear
governance stucture within its group of companies ("HLFG Group").

b) HLFG Board's responsibility is to promote the adoption of sound corporate

governance pringiples throughout the HLFG Group.

¢} HLFG's audit, risk and compliance functions may propose objectives, strategies,
plans, governance framework and policies for adoption and implementation

HLFG Group-wide.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

B. Board Committee {continued)

(@)

GBAC of HLAH (continued)

Terms of Reference (continued)

Group Governance {continued)

d} The respective subsidiaries’ board and senior management must validate that
the objectives, strategies, plans, governance framework and policies set at
HLFG level are fully consistent with the regulatory obligations and the prudential
management of the subsidiary and ensure that entity specific risks are
adequately addressed in the implementation of HLFG Group-wide policies.

« The GBAC shall validate that the objectives, strategies, plans, governance
framework and policies set at the HLFG level are fully consistent with the regulatory
obligations and the prudential management of the subsidiary and to check that the
entity specific risks are adequately addressed in the implementation of Group-wide
policies.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, four (4) GBAC meetings were held and
the attendance of the members was as follows:

Members Attendance
Ms Lim Tiau Kien 4/4
YBhg Dato Siow Kim Lun @ Siow Kim Lin 4/4
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin 4/4
Ms Shalet Marian 4/4
Mr Martin Giles Manen 373

Before the establishment of GBAC, three (3) BARMC meetings were held and the
attendance of the members was as follows:

Members Attendance
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin 3/3
Dr Aznan bin Hasan 3/3
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat 3/3

(Retired on 29 November 2017}
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board Committee {(continued)

(@)

GBAC of HLAH {continued)
Insurance Audit Department

The Company's internal audit function is outsourced to Hong Leong Assurance Berhad
(HLA). Internal Audit employs a risk-based assessment approach in auditing the
Company's business and operational activities. An annual audit plan is developed and
approved by the GBAC. All internal audit reports which incorporate the management's
responses were tabled for discussion at the GBAC meetings.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, Internal audit carried out its duties
covering audit on operations, market conduct, risk management, product pricing,
shariah, project management, business performance, surplus distribution, branch and
information system and personal data management. These audits are performed in line
with BNM Guidelines on Internal Audit Function and BNM Guidelines on Management of
IT Environment.

The cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the current financial year
was RM277,700 (2017. RM361,000).

GBRMC of HLAH

The GBRMC was establised under HLAH effective from 13 December 2017,
subsequent to the approval by BNM on 28 September 2017 for the centralisation of the
Risk Management Committees of HLAH, HLA and HLMT at HLAH. The BARMC of
HLMT was disbanded on 13 December 2017 with the establishment of GBAC and
GBRMC under HLAH.

The risk management and compliance system of the Company is overseen by the
GBRMC which comprises the following members:

Ms Koid Swee Lian

{Chairman of GBRMC and Independent Non-Executive Director of HLAH)
{Appointed as GBRMC Chairman on 13 December 2017)
YBhg Dato Siow Kim Lun @ Siow Kim Lin

(Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director of HLAH and Independent

Non-Executive Director of HLA)

(Appointed as GBRMC member on 13 December 2017)
YM Tunku Date' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin

(Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director of HLMT and Independent

Non-Executive Director of HLA)

(Appointed as GBRMC member on 13 December 2017)
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738050-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Al
¥

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

B. Board Committee (continued)

(b)

GBRMC of HLAH {(continued)

YBhg Datin Ngiam Pick Ngoh
(Independent Non-Executive Director of HLA)
{Appointed as GBRMC member on 13 December 2017)
Dr Aznan bin Hasan
(Independent Non-Executive Director of HLMT)
{(Appointed as GBRMC member on 13 December 2017)

Prior to the establishment of GBRMC, the risk management and compliance system of
the Company was overseen by the BARMC, The BARMC comprised the following
members;

YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy {Independent Non-Executive Director)
bin Tunku Muhiyiddin

Dr Aznan bin Hasan {Independent Non-Executive Director)
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat {Independent Non-Executive Director}

(Retired on 29 November 2017)
Terms of reference of GBRNMC

The primary functions and reponsibilities of the GBRMC are set out in the terms of
reference as follows:

Risk Management

« To review management's activities in managing principal risks such as credit,
market, liquidity, operational, compliance, insurance and IT risks, and the risk
management process.

* To review management's reporting to the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries on
a. ldentify and examine principal risks faced by HLAH and its subsidiaries.

b. Implement appropriate systems and internal controls to manage these risks.

» To review management's major risk management strategies, policies and risk
tolerance for Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries' approval.

* To review management's overall framework on the Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process ("ICAAP”), annual risk appetite, Individual Target Capital
Level ("ITCL") and Capital Management Plan for Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries’
approval.

+ To review management’s development and effective implementation of the ICAAP.

= To review management's stress {esting governance including the evaluation on the
capital stress test scenarios, parameters, key assumptions and resuits.

- To review management's periodic reports on risk appetite, risk exposure, risk
portfolio composition, stress testing and risk management activities.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
B. Board Committee (continued)
(b) GBRMC of HLAH {continued)

Risk Management (continued)

« To review the adequacy and effectiveness of management's internal controls and

risk management process.

» To review the adequacy of risk management policies and frameworks in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controliing risk and the extent to which these are

operating effectively.

*  To review risk management function's infrastructure, resources and systems and
that the staff responsible for implementing risk management systems perform those

duties independently of the Company's risk taking activities.
+ To receive reports from pertinent management commitiee.

» To review management's implementation of risk management as set out in BNM’s
poiicy document on Risk Governance, Approaches to Regulating and Supervising

Financial Group and Corporate Governance.

» To review and advise on the appointment, remuneration, removal and redeployment

of the Chief Risk Officer/Head of Risk Management ("CRO").

= To engage privately with the CRO on a regular basis (and in any case at least twice
annually} to provide the opportunity for the CRO to discuss issues faced by the risk

management function.

+ To review management's implementation of the remuneration system on whether
incentives provided by the remuneration system take into consideration risks,
capital, liquidity and the likelihood and timing of earnings, without prejudice to the

tasks of the Board Remuneration Committee.

= Other risk management functions as may be agreed to by the GBRMC and the

Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries.

Compliance

+ To assist the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries in the oversight of the

management of compliance risk by :

a) reviewing compliance policies and overseeing management’s implementation of

the same;

b) reviewing the establishment of the compliance function and the position of the
Chief Compliance Officer/Head of Compliance (“CCO" to ensure the
compliance function and CCO are provided with appropriate standing, authority

and independence;

¢) discussing and deliberating compliance issues regularly and ensuring such

issues are resolved effectively and expeditiously;

d) reviewing annually the effectiveness of HLAH and its subsidiaries' overall
management of compliance risk, having regard to the assessments of senior

management and internal audit and interactions with the CCO;
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

B.

Board Committee (continued)

(b)

GBRMC of HLAH {continued)

Compliance (continued)

e)

Updating the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries on all significant compliance
matters, including providing its views on (a) to (d) above.

* In relation to the role of the CCO, support the Board of HLAH and its subsidiaries in
meeting the expectations on compliance management as set out in BNM's policy
document on Compliance by:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

reviewing and advising on the appointment, remuneration, removal and
redeployment of the CCO;

ensuring that CCO has sufficient stature to allow for effective engagement with
the CEO and other members of senior management;

engaging privately with the CCO on a regular basis (and in any case at least
twice annually) to provide the opportunity for the CCO to discuss issues faced
by the compliance function;

ensuring that the CCO is supported with sufficient resources to perform his
duties effectively;

where CCO also carries out responsibilities in respect of other control functions,
the GBRMC shall be satisfied that a sound overall control environment will not
be compromised by the combination of responsibilities performed by the CCO.

+ Other compliance functions as may be agreed to by the GBRMC and the Board of
HLAH and its subsidiaries.

Group Governance

« Noted that :

a)
b)

c)

d)

HLFG as an apex entity has overall responsibility for ensuring the establishment
and operation of a clear governance structure within HLFG Group.

HLFG Boeards responsibility is to promote the adoption of sound corporate
governance pringiples throughout the HLFG Group.

HLFG's audit, risk and compliance functions may propose objectives, strategies,
plans, governance framework and policies for adoption and implementation
HLFG Group-wide.

The respective subsidiaries' board and senior management must validate that
the objectives, strategies, plans, governance framework and policies set at
HLFG level are fully consistent with the regulatory obligations and the prudential
management of the subsidiary and ensure that entity specific risks are
adequately addressed in the implementation of HLFG Group-wide policies.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE {CONTINUED)

B.

Board Committee (continued)

(b)

{c)

GBRMC of HLAH {continued)

Group Governance {(continued)

+ The GBRMC shall validate that the objectives, strategies, plans, governance
framework and policies set at HLFG leve!l are fully consistent with the regulatory
obligations and the prudential management of the subsidiary and to check that the
entity specific risks are adequately addresses in the implementation of Group-wide

policies.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, three (3) GBRMC meetings were held
until the BARMC was disbanded on 13 December 2017 and the attendance of the

members was as follows:

Members Attendance

Ms Koid Swee Lian

YBhg Dato Siow Kim Lun @ Siow Kim Lin

YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin
YBhg Datin Ngiam Pick Ngoh

Dr Aznan bin Hasan

3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3

Before the establishment of GBRMC, three (3) BARMC meetings were held and the

attendance of the members was as follows :

Members Attendance

YM Tunku Dato’ Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin
Dr Aznan bin Hasan
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat (Retired on 29 November 2017)

Nomination Commiftee (“NC”)

The members of the NC are as follows:

Dr Aznan Bin Hasan (Chairman, Independent Non-Executive
(Redesignated as Chairman with Director)

effect from 29 November 2017)

Ms Loh Guat Lan {Non-Independent Executive Director)

Mr Martin Giles Manen {Independent Non-Executive Director)
{Appointed with effect from 16 April 2018)

Encik Mustapha bin Hamat (Independent Non-Executive Director)
(Retired on 29 November 2017)
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

B.

Board Committee (continued)

()

(i)

(ii)
i}

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Nomination Committee {“NC”) {continued)

The NC's responsibilities are as follows:

Support the Board in carrying out its functions in the following matters concerning
the board, senior management and company secretary(ies):

(a) appointments and removals;

(b) composition;

{c) performance evaluation and development; and

(d) fit and proper assessments.

Recommend to the Board the minimum criteria and skill sets for appointments to the
Board, Board Committees and for the position of Chief Executive Officer.

Review and recommend to the Board all Board, Board Committees and Shariah
Committee appointments, re-appointments and removals including of the Chief
Executive Officer.

Review annually the overall composition of the Board in terms of the appropriate
size and skills, the balance between executive . directors, non-executive and
independent directors, and mix of skills and other core competencies required.
Assess annually the performance and effectiveness of the Board, Board
Committees and each individual director.

Oversee the appointment and management of succession planning and
performance evaluation of key senior management officers and recommend their
removal if they are found ineffective, errant and negligent in discharging their
responsibilities; and

Ensure that the Board receives an appropriate continuous training programme.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, four {(4) NC meetings were held and
the attendance of the members was as follows:

Members Attendance
Dr Aznan bin Hasan {Chairman) _ 4/4
(Redesignated as Chairman with effect from 2% November 2017) '

Ms Loh Guat Lan 444

Mr Martin Giles Manen* ’ -
(Appointed with effect from 16 Aprif 2018)

Encik Mustapha bin Hamat 373
(Retired on 29 November 2017)

Note :
* All the four (4) NC meetings were held before his appointment.
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(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

B. Board Committee (continued)

(d)

Remuneration Committee ("RC")

The members of the RC are as follows:

Dr Aznan bin Hasan (Chairman) (Chairman, Independent Non-Executive
Director)
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy (Independent Non-Executive Director)
bin Tunku Muhiyiddin
Mr Martin Giles Manen (Independent Non-Executive Director)
(Appointed with effect from
16 April 2018}
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat {Independent Non-Executive Director)

{Retired on 29 November 2017)
The RC's responsibilities are as follows:

(i) Recommend tfo the Board the framework and policies governing the
remuneration of the:
»  Directors;
= Chief Executive Officer;
»  Senior management
»  Other material risk

(ii) Review and recommend to the Board for approval the specific remuneration
packages of executive directors and the Chief Executive Officer.

(i) Review and recommend to the Board for approval the remuneration of senior
management officers and other material risk takers.,

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, two (2) RC meetings were held and the
attendance of the members was as follows:

Members Atiendance

Dr Aznan bin Hasan (Chairman)

{Redesignated as Chairman with effect from 29 November 2017) 212
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmeod Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin 212
Mr Martin Giles Manen

{Appointed with effect from 16 April 2018) -
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat

(Retired on 29 November 2017) 2/2

Note;
*All the two (2) RC meetings were held before his appointment.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board Committee {(continued)

(d)

Remuneration Committee ("RC"} (continued)

Procedure

The fees of Directors, including Non-Executive Directors, are recommended and
endorsed by the Board for approval by the shareholders of the Company at its Annual
General Meeting.

Disclosure

The remuneration of the Directors is set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Remuneration Policy

HLMT's rewards strategy is in alignment with the Hong Leong Group's total
compensation philosophy which supports and promotes a high performing culture to
deliver the company's vision to be a highly digital & innovative company. The rewards
strategy focuses on providing a competitive remuneration and benefits package, as well
as ample career progression opportunities for employees.

The company's rewards framework focuses on a balanced and right pay mix to achieve
the desired long term business performance. The framework includes base pay, cash
allowances, performance based variable pay, long term incentives, benefits and other
employee programs.

The rewards framework ensures that employees are paid competitively against the
industry and talent market the company is operating in; delivered via a combination of
cash and non-cash elements such as shares or share-linked instruments.

Key performance indicators ("KPI") and key resuits areas of employees are measured
and tracked diligently to ensure strong alignment of employee output to the overall
business strategy and direction of the company.

Compensation for Material Risk Takers

The remuneration for each director, member of senior management and other material
risk taker is approved by the board annually.

The remuneration for Senior Officers and Material Risk Takers for financial year
201712018 is shown in the table below:
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CORFORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
B. Board Committee {continued)

{d) Remuneration Committee ("RC") (continued)

Compensation for Material Risk Takers (continued)

Total value of CEO Senior Management and other
remuneration awards Material Risk Takers
for the financial year | Unrestricted Deferred Unrestricted Deferred
{RM) (RM) {RM) (RM)

Fixed Remuneration - - -
« Cash-based 286,452 - 2,040,914 -

* Shares and share-
linked instruments

= Other - - - -
Variable - - - -
« Cash-based - - 325,499 -
+ Shares and share-
linked instruments

« Other 60,844 - 492 646 -

C. Independence

The Company has in place a policy in relation to the tenure for independent Directors of the
Company (“Tenure Palicy”) under the Fit and Proper Policy of the Company. Pursuant to the
Tenure Policy, an independent Director who has served on the Board of any company under
the Hong Leong Financial Group for a period of 9 years continuously or mare shall submit a
Letter of Intent to the NC informing of his intention to continue in office or to retire from the
Board as an independent Director, upon:-

a}  the expiry of his term of office approved by BNM; or
b}  the due date for his retirement pursuant to the Constitution of the Company.

If the intention is to continue in office, the NC shall consider based on the assessment criteria
and guidelines set out in the Fit and Proper Policy and make the appropriate recommendation
to the Board. If the intention is to retire from office, an application shall be made to BNM to
seek clearance in accordance to BNM Guidelines.

The Board seeks to strike an appropriate balance between tenure of service, continuity of
experience and refreshment of the Board. Although a longer tenure of directorship may be
perceived as relevant to the determination of a Director’s independence, the Board recognises
that an individual's independence should not be determined solely based on tenure of service.
Further, the continued tenure of directorship brings considerable stability to the Board, and the
Company benefits from Directors who have, over time, gained valuable insight into the
Company, its market and the industry.
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(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

C.

Independence (continued)

The independent Directors have declared their independence, and the NC and the Board have
determined, at the annual assessment carried out, that the independent Directors, have
continued to bring objective judgment to the Board deliberations and decision making. The
tenure of all the independent directors on the Board does not exceed 9 years.

Commitment

The Directors are aware of their responsibilities and devote sufficient time to carry out such
responsibilities. Board meetings are scheduled a year ahead in order to enable full attendance
at Board meetings. Directors are required to atlend at least 75% of Board meetings held in
each financial year pursuant to the BNM policy document on Corporate Governance.

All Board members are supplied with information in a timely manner. Board reports are
circulated prior to Board meetings and the reports provide, amongst others, financial and
corporate information, significant operational, financial and corporate issues, updates on the
performance of the Company and management's proposals which require the approval of the
Board.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of a qualified and competent Company
Secretary and internal auditors. All Directors also have access to independent professional
advice at the Company's expense, in consultation with the Chairman or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

At Board meetings, active deliberations of issues by Board members are encouraged and
such deliberations, decisions and conclusions are recorded by the Company Secretary
accordingly. Any Director who has an interest in the subject matter to be deliberated shall
excuse himself from deliberation and voting on the same during the meetings.

Shariah Committee (“SC")

The members of the SC are as follows:

Prof, Dr. Ab. Mumin Ab. Ghani {Chairman)
Asst. Prof. Dr. Uzaimah lorahim {(Member)
Dr. Muhammad Aunurrochim Mas'ad Saleh {Member)
Dr. Asmak Ab Rahman (Member)
Dr. Nuru! Aini Muhamed (Member)

During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, eight (8) SC meetings were held and the
attendance of the members was as follows:
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E. Shariah Committee {(“SC”) {continued)

Members Attendance
Prof. Dr. Ab. Mumin Ab. Ghani 8/8
Asst. Prof. Dr. Uzaimah 8/8
Dr. Muhammad Aunurrochim Mas'ad Saleh 8/8
Dr. Asmak Ab Rahman 718
Dr. Nurul Aini Muhamed 8/8

HOLDING COMPANIES

The immediate, penultimate and uitimate holding companies are HLA Holdings Sdn Bhd, Hong Leong
Financial Group Berhad and Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad respectively, all companies
incorporated in Malaysia.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE COMPANY
()] As at the end of the financial year

(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were made cut, the Directors took
reasonable steps:

(i) to ascertain that there was adequate provision for incurred claims, including
incurred but not reported claims (“IBNR™);
(i) to ascertain proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad

debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(iii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their book
values in the ordinary course of business had been written down to their
estimated realisable values.

(b) In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the cperations of the Company during
the financial year have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature, other than those disclosed in the financial
statements.

{n As at the end of the financial year to the date of this report

(a) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i) which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of
the allowance for doubtful debts inadequate to any material extent;
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(n As at the end of the financial year to the date of this report (continued)

{iy which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial
statements misleading; and '

{if) which had arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of
valuation of assets and liabilities of the Company misleading or
inappropriate.

(b) In the opinion of the Directors:
(i) the results of the operations of the Company for the financial year ended 30

June 2018 are not likely to be substantially affected by any item, transaction
or event of a material and unusual nature which had arisen in the interval
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report; and

i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to
become enforceable, within the period of twelve months after the end of the
financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet
their obligations as and when they fall due (for the purpose of this
paragraph, contingent or other liabilities do not include liabilities arising
from contract of Takaful underwritten in the ordinary course of business of
the Company).

{11 As at the date of this report

(a) There are no charges on the assets of the Company which had arisen since the end
of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other person;

(b} There are no contingent liabilities which had arisen since the end of the financial
year; and

{c) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in the

report or financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditors is set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
(CONTINUED)

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1148), have expressed their
willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146) was registered on 2 January 2018 and
with effect from that date, PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), a conventional partnership was
converied to a limited liability partnership.

The report was approved by the Board of Directors on 13 September 2018. Signed on behalf of the
Board of Directors.

NKL%O' MAHMOOD FAWZY
BIN TUNKU MUHIYIDDIN
DIRECTOR

Petaling Jaya
13 September 2018
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT 2016 .

We, YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin and Loh Guat Lan, being two of the
Directors of HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD, state that to the best of knowledge and belief
of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 38 to 163 are drawn up in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 30 June 2018 and of the resulis and the cash flows of the Company for
the financial year ended on that date.

On behalf of the Board,

YMTUNKUDATO' MAHMOOD FAWZY
BIN TUNKU MUHIYIDDIN
DIRECTOR

LOH GUAT B¢

DIRECTOR

Petaling Jaya
13 September 2013
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT 2016

[, Ong Kheng Heng, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the
financial statements set out on pages 38 to 163 are to the best of my knowledge and belief,
correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and
by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared )
by the above named Ong Kheng Heng )
at Selangor Darul Ehsan this )

13 September 2018

Before me

No. 344 (Tkt 1), Jalan 8s2/67
47300 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH COMMITTEE

In the name of Allah, The Beneficent, The Merciful.

To the Shareholders of Hong Leong MSIG Takaful Berhad,

In compliance with the letter of appointment, we are required to submit the following report:

We have reviewed the principles and the contracts relating to the transactions and applications
introduced by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2018. We have also conducted
our review to form an opinion as to whether the Company has complied with Shariah rules and
principles and with the specific fatwas, rulings and guidelines issued by us.

The Company's management is responsible for ensuring that the Company conducts its business in
accordance with Shariah rules and principles. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion
and report, based on our review of the principles and contracts in relation to transactions and
applications of the Company.

We have assessed the work carried out by Shariah review which included examining, on a test
basis, each type of transaction, the relevant documentation and procedures adopted by the
Company.

We performed our review on the basis of information and explanations provided to us which are
deemed essential together with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Company
has not violated Shariah rules and principles. Nonetheless, there was one (1) case of Shariah non-
compliant which had been reported and rectified accordingly.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge:

{(a) the contracts, transactions and dealings entered into by the Company during the financial year
ended 30 June 2018 as presented and deliberated to us are in compliance with the Shariah
rules and principles;

(b) the allocation of profit and charging of losses relating to investment accounts, the main
sources and investments of the Company disclosed to us conform to the basis that had been
approved by us in accordance with Shariah rules and principles;

(c) no earnings have been realised from sources or by means prohibited by the Shariah
principles;

(d) the calculation and distribution of Zakat has been approved by us and in compliance with
Shariah principles; and

(e) the Shariah non-compliant events occurred were rectified as advised and preventive actions
have been taken to avoid the recurrence of the events. During the financial year, one (1)
Shariah non-compliant event was identified. We have advised preventive actions such as
tightening the process flow and enhancing the procedures to avoid similar breaches from
recurring in the future.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

We, are the members of Shariah Committee of Hong Leong MSIG Takaful, do hereby confirm that

the operations of Hong Leong MSIG Takaful for the year ended 30 June 2018 have been conducted
in conformity with the Shariah principles.

We beg Allah the Almighty to grant us all the success and straight-forwardness.

<
N
™ W
ASSOCZPROF. DR. AB. MUMIN AB. GHANI ASST. PROF. DR. UZAIMAH IBRAHIM
Chairman Member
Shariah Commitiee Shariah Committee

Kuala Lumpur
13 September 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Company No. 738090-M)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Hong Leong MSIG Takaful Berhad (“the Company”) give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2018, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

What we have andited

We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018, and the statement of income, statement of other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages
38 to 163.

Basis for gpinion

We conducted our audii in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct
and Practice} of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the TESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, 1 Sentral, Jalan
Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.0O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3) 2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT {LLPO014401-LCA & AF 1148) was registered on 02,01,2018 and with effect from that date, PricewaterhouseCoopers (AF 1146), a
conventional parinership was cenverted to a limited liability partnership,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 738090-M}

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD (CONTINUED)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

{Company No. 738090-M)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an anditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in
Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of acecounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the
Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the

Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(Company No. 738050-M)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

™.
[ ]
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS PLT MANJIT SINGH A/L HAJANDER SINGH
LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146 02054/03/2019 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
13 September 2018
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
"FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the financial year

Adjustments for:

Write back of impairment of takaful receivables
Write off of property and equipment

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Gain on disposal of investments

Unrealised fair value lossf{gain) on financial assets
Accretion of discounts-net

Profits and dividend income

Allowance for dimunition in value of investments
Taxation

Profit/{loss) from operations before change in operating assets
and liabilities

Proceeds from disposal of investments

Maturity of investments

Purchase of investments

Increase in expenses liabilities

Increase in family takaful contract liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in general takaful contract liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in loans and receivables
Decreasef(increase) in retakaful assets
Decrease/(increase) in takaful receivables
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables
(Decrease)fincrease in takaful payables

Increase in other payables

Increase in tax recoverable

Increase in amount due to related companies

Tax paid

Profit received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
8,191 147

(360) (506)
134 .
641 568

2,371 2,020
(1,946) (2,658)
1,446 (885)
(18) (99)
(20,060) (16,906)
4,277 804
8,258 7,288
2,934 (10,187)
109,484 113,838
21,500 15,000
(168,904) (245,569)
2,783 1,070
86,825 45,272
(6,613) 4,419
622 (218)
1,322 (3,238)
9,512 (7,038)
1,594 (2,343)
(8,417) 13,586
5,002 6,143
(2,457) -
487 264
55,764 (69,001)
(7,384) (5,840)
16,664 13,810
2,931 2,246
67,975 (58,785)




HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (619) (1,283)
Purchase of intangible assets (268) (903)
Net cash used in investing activities (887) (2,186)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 67,088 (60,971)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 35,817 96,788
Transfer to assets of disposal group classified as Hefd-For-Sale (25,932) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 76,973 35,817
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 7,158 10,451
Cash and bank balances 69,816 25,366
Short term deposits - 76,973 35,817

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company Noa. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

1

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is engaged principally in the managing of Family Takaful including investment-
linked business and all classes of General Takaful business. There has been no significant
change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The
registered office of the Company is located at Level 30, Menara Hong lLeong, No. 6, Jalan
Damanlela, Bukit Damansara, 50490 Kuala Lumpur. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Level 5, Tower B, PJ City Development, No 15A, Jalan 219, Seksyen
51A, 46100 Petaling Jaya, Selangor.

The immediate, penultimate and ultimate holding companies are HLA Holdings Sdn Bhd, Hong
Leong Financial Group Berhad and Hong Leong Company (Malaysia} Berhad respectively, all
companies incorporated in Malaysia.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with
a resolution of the Directors on 13 September 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise stated, the following accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items that are considered material in relation to the financial statements and to all

the financial years presented.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except as disclosed in this significant accounting policies, and comply with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS"), International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Company reflects the financial information and results of Takaful
Operator and Takaful funds presented as a single economic entity for the respective financial
years disclosed. Interfund balances and transactions are eliminated in arriving at the Company's
financiai statements.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2

2.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The inclusion of separate financial information of the Takaful funds and the Takaful Operator
together with the financial information of the Company in the statement of financial position, the
statement of comprehensive income as well as certain relevant notes to the financial statements
represents additional supplementary information presented in accordance with the requirements
of BNM pursuant to the Islamic Financial Services Act, 2013 (“IFSA”) in Malaysia to separate
assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Takaful funds from its own. The accounting
policies adopted for the Takaful Operator and Takaful funds are uniform for transactions and
events in similar circumstances.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the MFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported financial
year. It also requires Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates are based on the Directors’ best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.3.

(a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective

The new accounting standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations

that one applicable and effective for the Company's financial year beginning on 1 Juily 2017

are as follows:

. Amendments to MFRS 107 ‘Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosure Initiative’

. Amendments to MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses’

. Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle: MFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of
Interests in Other Entities’

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current period or any
prior period and is not likely to affect future periods.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective
for financial year beginning after 1 July 2018 that are applicable to the Company are as

follows :-

Financial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018

. MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2018) will replace MFRS
139 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

MFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model in MFRS 139 and
establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive
income ("OCI"). The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model
and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are always measured at fair value through profit or loss with an
irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI (provided the
instrument is not held for trading). A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost
only if the entity is holding it to collect coniractual cash flows and the cash flows
represent principal and interest.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements, These
include amortised cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of
embedded derivatives. The main change is :

. For financial liabilities classified as FVTPL, the fair value changes due to own
credit risk should be recognised directly to OCIl. There is no subsequent
recycling to profit or loss.

The combined application of the entity's business model and the cash flow
characteristic of the financial assets do not result in the significant change in the
classification of financial asset when compared to the existing classification of
financial assets in the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

inancial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018 (continued)

. MFRS 8 'Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2018) will replace MFRS
139 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement". {continued)

Classification and measurements

However, the Company have identified certain financial investments currently held at
available-for-sale ("AFS") which fail the solely for the payment of principal and
interest ("SPPI") test to be reclassified as FVTPL accordingly on 1 July 2018.

Following the Company's business model in managing its financial assets, certain
debt instruments which pass SSPI test have been re-designated from available-for-
sale to FVTPL by applying fair value option.

The Company have classifield and measured all equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTPL.

There will be no significant changes to the Company's accounting for financial
liablities as it largely retains the MFRS 139 reguirements. All the financial liabilities,
except for derivatives financial liabilities and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
will remain as amortised cost as there has not been significant change in the
requirements for the financial liabilities under MFRS 9.

Impairment of financial assets

MFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model on impairment that replaces the
incurred loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. The expected credit loss model
is forward looking and eliminates the nees for a trigger event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment allowances based
on expected credit [osses ("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the
case under MFRS 139. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost,
debt instruments measured at FVOCI and takaful receivables.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation {continued)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018 (continued)

. MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2018) will replace MFRS
139 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement". (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Under MFRS 9, impairment will be measured on each reporting date according to a
three-stage ECL impairment model:

. Stage 1 - from initial recognition of a financial assets to the date on which the
credit risk of the asset has increased significantly relative to its initial
recognition, a loss allowance is recognised equal to the credit losses expected
to result from defaults occuring over the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

. Stage 2 - following a significant increase in credit risk relative to the initial
recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance is recognised equal {o the
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the financial asset (Lifetime
ECL).

. Stage 3 - When a financial asset is considered to be credit-impaired, a loss
allowance equal to full lifetime expecied credit losses is to be recognised
(Lifetime ECL).

As all financial assets within the scope of MFRS 9 impairment model will be
assessed for least 12-month ECL, and the population of the financial assets to which
full lifetime ECL applies is larger than the population of impaired loans for which
there is objective evidence of impairment in accordance with MFRS 139, the total
allowance for credit losses is expected to increase under MFRS 9 relative to the
allowance for credit losses under MFRS 139.

In addition, changes in the required credit loss allowance, including the impact of
movements between Stage 1 (12-month ECL) and Stage 2 (lifetime ECL} and the
application of forward looking information, will be recorded in profit or loss, allowance
for credit losses will be more volatile under MFRS 9.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

{b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018 (continued)

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be unbiased,
probability-weighted and should incorporate all available information which is relevant to the
assessment, including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable
and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting date.
In addition, the estimation of ECL should also take into account the time value of money.

Disclosure

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the nature and extent of the Company's
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.

The Company will apply the new rules retrospectively from 1 July 2018, with the practical
expedientis permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 2018 will not be restated.

The Company are still in the midst of finalising the financial impact in relation to the
adoption of MFRS 9. Based on the preliminary assessments undertaken to-date, the
Company expect an increase in the allowance for impairment on takaful receivables under
the new impairment requirements, which will result in a reduction in the Company's opening
retained profits and overall capital positions as of 1 July 2018.

The Company is in the finalisation stages of the MFRS 9 implementation with a view to
ensure full compliance by 1 July 2018.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b} Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018 (continued)

MFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ {(effective from 1 January 2018)
replaces MFRS 118 ‘Revenue’ and MFRS 111 ‘Construction contracts’ and related
interpretations.

The core principle in MFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of goods or services, that is
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and obtain the benefits from
the goods or services.

A new five-step process is applied before revenue can be recognised:

. Identify contracts with customers

. Identify the separate performance obligations

. Determine the transaction price of the contract;

. Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations;
and

. Recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018 (continued)

. MFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective from 1 January 2018)
replaces MFRS 118 ‘Revenue’ and MFRS 111 ‘Construction contracts’ and related
interpretations. (continued)

Key provisions of the new standard are as follows:

. Any bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognised,
and any discounts ar rebates on the contract price must generally be allocated
to the separate elements.

. If the consideration varies (such as for incentives, rebates, performance fees,
royalties, success of an outcome etc), minimum amounts of revenue must be
recognised if they are not at significant risk of reversal.

. The point at which revenue is able to be recognised may shift: some revenue
which is currently recognised at a point in time at the end of a contract may
have to be recoegnised over the contract term and vice versa.

. There are new specific rules on licenses, warranties, non-refundable upfront
fees, and consignment arrangements, to name a few.

. As with any new standard, there are also increased disclosures.

The Company has not fully assessed the impact of MFRS 15 on its financial
statements.

. Amendments to MFRS 2 'Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions' (effective from 1 January 2018).
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738020-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

Financial year beginning on/after 1 July 2018 {(continued)

MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective from 1 January 2021) replaces MFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’.

MFRS 17 applies to insurance contracts issued, o all reinsurance contracts and to
investment contracts with discretionary participating features if an entity also issues
insurance contracts. For fixed-fee service contracts whose primary purpose is the
provision of services, an entity has an accounting policy choice to account for them
in accordance with either MFRS 17 or MFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
customers”. An enity is allowed to account financial guarantee contracts in
accordance with MFRS 17 if the entity has asseried explicitly that it regarded them
as insurance contracts. Insurance contracts, (other than reinsurance) where the
enity is the policyholder are not within the scope of MFRS 17. Embedded derivatives
and distinct investment and service components should be ‘unbundled” and
accounted for separately in accordance with related MFRSs. Voluntary unbundling of
other components is prohibited.

MFRS 17 requires a current measurement model where estimates are re-measured
at each reporting period. The measurement is based on the building blocks of
discounted, probability-weighted cas flows, a risk adjustment and a contractual
service margin (“CSM”) representing the unearned profit of the contract. An entity
has a policy choice to recognise the impact of changes in discount rates and other
assumptions that related to the financial risks either in profit or loss or in other
comprehensive income.

Alternative measurement models are provided for the different insurance coverage:

iy  Simplified Premium Allocation Approach if the insurance coverage period is a
year or less

iy Variable Fee Approach should be applied for insurance contracts that specify a
link between payments to the policyholder and the returns on the underlying
items

The requirements of MFRS 17 align the presentation of revenue with other
industries. Revenue is allocated to the periods in proportion to the value of the
expected coverage and other services that the insurer provides in the period, and
claims are presented when incurred. Investment components are excluded from

revenue and claims.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards
that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective (continued)

Financial year beqinning on/after 1 July 2018 {continued)

. MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (effective from 1 January 2021) replaces MFRS 4
‘Insurance Conftracts’. (continued)

Insurers are required to disclose information about amounts, judgements and risks
arising from insurance contracts.

The Company is in the process of assessing the financial impact onto the
Company's financial statements.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of the amount of goods and services tax
(GST) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the government, the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the property and equipment. The cost of property and
equipment includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditure are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of
the assets, to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, summarised as follows:

Computer equipment 5 years
Furniture & fittings, office equipment and renovation 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Property and equipment (continued)

Work-in-progress is carried at cost and is depreciated when the asset is available for use.
The residual values and useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted
as appropriate, at each date of statement of financial position.

At each date of statement of financial position, the Company assesses whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indications exist, an analysis is performed to assess
whether the carrying amount of the asset is fully recoverable. A write down is made if the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note 2.2(g) on
impairment of assets.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amounts and are included in profit or loss.

Intangible assets - computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense when incurred. Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Costs
include employee costs incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives, not exceeding a period of 5 years.

Leases

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Company all the
risk and rewards incidental to ownership. All leases that do not transfer substantially all the
risk and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operating leases,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company Na. 738090-M)
(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Islamic Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one
enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

A financial asset is any asset that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from another enterprise, a contractual right to exchange financial
instruments with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially favourable, or an
equity instrument of another enterprise.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another enterprise, or to exchange financial instruments with another
enterprise under conditions that are potentially unfavourable.

0

(i)

Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is recognised in the financial statements when, and only when,
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial instrument is initially recognised at its fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument for all
financial instrument not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), financial assets available-for-
sale ("AFS"), and loans and receivables ("LAR"). Classification of the financial
assets is determined at initial recognition and relates to the purpose for which the
investments were acquired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise held-for-trading financial assets and financial
assets other than held-for-trading that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

b
3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Islamic Financial instruments {continued)

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

(@)

(b)

Held-for-trading financial assets are financial assets that are acquired and
held principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or it is part of a
portfolio of identified Islamic securities that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. This includes Islamic derivatives that are not designated for
hedges.

Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted
equity instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost.

Financial assets other than held-for-trading that are designated at fair
value are classified as such if this eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases. All financial assets held in the investment-linked
funds are designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial assets classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at their
fair values with fair value adjustments and realised gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss of the respective funds. Equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

AFS financial asséts

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any

of the other categories and are measured at fair value.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Islamic Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued)
AFS financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to their acquisition and are subsequently carried at fair value.
Fair value gains or losses of those financial assets are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses. When these assets are
derecognised, the accumulated fair value adjustments previously recognised in
equity are included in profit or loss as net realised gains or losses of the respective
funds.

LAR financial assets

LAR financial assets are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These financial assets are initially recognised at
cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the
investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also
included in the cost of the investment.

After initial measurement, LAR are measured at amortised cost, using the effective
yield method, less provision for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss of respective funds when the financial assets are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d} Islamic Financial instruments {continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are held
for trading, or financial liabilities that are specifically designated into this category
upon initial recognition.

Other financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss of the respective funds.

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is
transferred to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and
rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss of the respective funds.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a
financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss of
the respective funds.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

()

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of Government Investment Issues and unguoted corporate securities are
based on indicative fair market pricesfindex by reference to the quotations provided by
banks and brokers.

The fair values of quoted securities are based on current market prices. If the market for a
financial asset is not active, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option
pricing models.

The fair value of structured deposits is based on the prices quoted by the issuing financial
institution.

The fair value of floating rate and over-night deposits with financial institutions is their
carrying value. The carrying value is the cost of the deposit or placement and accrued
profit. The fair value of fixed profit or yield-bearing deposits is measured at the face value
or market value, whichever is lower.

Qard

Qard represents benevolent loan from Takaful Operator to meet deficits in participants’
special accounts and shall be repaid from future surpluses from the participants’ special
accounts in Takaful funds.

In preparing the separate financial statements of the Takaful Operator, gard receivable is
stated at cost and at each date of the statement of financial position, the Company
assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, an
analysis is performed to assess whether the camying amount of the asset is fully
recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount,
as set out in Note 2.2(g) on impairment of assets.

In preparing the separate financial statements of the respective Takaful funds, gard
payable is stated at cost. Qard balances are eliminated in preparing the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Impairment

()

Financial assets, excluding Takaful receivables

The Company assesses at each date of the statement of financial position whether a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset that can be
reliably estimated.

(1)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss in respect of loans and
other receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective yield. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss of the respective funds.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in.a collective assessment of
impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at each reporting date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the respective funds.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g9) Impairment (continued)

(i) Financial assets, excluding Takaful receivables (continued)

(2)

3)

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried
at cost (e.g. equity instrument of which there is no active market or whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured) has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for similar securities. Such impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss of the respective funds and shall not be reversed.

Financial assetfs carried at fair value

In the case of investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the financial assets below its cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses previously recognised in
profit or loss for equity instruments are not reversed through the profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Impairment (continued)

(i)

Non-financial assets

At each date of statement of financial position, the Company reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. Impairment is measured by comparing carrying values of the assets
with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net
realisable value and the value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted
cash flows.

An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss of the respective funds immediately.
Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when the
impairment losses recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. A
reversal of such impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss of respective funds
immediately.

{h) Takaful receivables

Takaful receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, Takaful
receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective yield method.

If there is objective evidence that the Takaful receivable is impaired, the Company reduces
the carrying amount of the Takaful receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment
loss in profit or loss of respective funds. The Company gathers the objective evidence that
Takaful receivables are impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets at
amortised costs. The impairment loss is calculated under the same method used for these
financial assets. These processes are described in Note 2.2(g).

Takaful receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets,
as described in Note 2.2(d)(iii) have been met.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balances and deposits held at call with Istamic
financial institutions with original maturities of three months or less. It excludes deposits
which are held for investment purpose. The Company classifies the cash flow for the
purchase and disposal of investment in financial asset in its operating cash flows as the
purchases are funded from the cash flow associated with the origination of Takaful
contracts, net of the cash flow for payment of Takaful benefits and claims benefits.

Taxation
Taxation for the financial year comprises current and deffered tax.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered or paid to tax authorities. The tax rates used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the statement
of financial position,

Current tax expense is determined according to the tax laws of the jurisdiction in which the
Company operates and includes all taxes based upon the taxable profits.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, providing for temporary
differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for tax purpose.
However, deferred tax is not recognised for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting, nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can
be utilised.

Tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date are
used to determine deferred tax.

Zakat

Zakat represents tithes payable by the Company to comply with Shariah principles and as
approved by the Shariah Advisory Committee. Zakat provision is calculated based on 2.5%
of net asset method, calculated on the percentage of the muslim equity of the ultimate
holding company. Zakat is only provided when there is a commitment or an obligation
exists as at financial year end.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(m)

Management expenses, commission expenses and wakalah fee

Acquisition costs, commissions and management expenses are borne by the Family
Takaful and General Takaful funds respectively in profit or loss at an agreed percentage of
the gross contribution, in accordance with the principles of “Wakalah” as approved by the
Company's Shariah Commitiee and agreed between the participants and the Company.
These expenses are allocated to the Takaful Operator via upfront wakalah fee and special
wakalah fee.

Upfront wakalah fee is allocated to the Takaful Operator and recognised as income upon
issuance of certificates.

Special wakalah fee is the monthly tabarru’ from the participants’ account to the
participants’ special account and is deferred as a liability under “special fund reserve” in
participants’ special account. Special wakalah fee may be distributed to the Takaful
Operator and participants in the ratio specified in the cerificate contract, based on the
recommendation by the Appointed Actuary when the participants’ special account is in a
surplus position after an annual actuarial valuation of the participants' special account at
the end of the financial year. Undistributed special wakalah fee for a particular year cannot
be carried forward for distribution in a future financial year, and hence, will form a part of
Takaful contract liabilities in participants’ special account. '

In the event that the participants’ special account is in a deficit position, the deficit in the
participants’ special account will be made good by the “"special fund reserve” arising from
monthly allocation of tabarru’/donation before the Takaful Operator via a benevolent loan or
Qard.

Expense liabilities

At each reporting date, the Company estimates its net future expenses cashflow required
on the maintenance of the Takaful funds in accordance with the Guidelines on Valuation
Basis for Liabilities of Family and General Takaful Business issued by BNM. If the estimate
shows that there is a deficiency in the net future expense cashflow, the deficiency is
recognised as expense liabilities.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

(n)

(0)

Employee benefils

Shori-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annuai leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits, which are short-
term employee benefits, are accrued in the financial year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees of the Company.

Post employment benefits

The Company’s contributions to the national defined contribution plan, the Employees’
Provident Fund, are charged to profit or loss of the respective funds in the financial year to
which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Company has no further
payment obligations.

Product classification

The Company, on behalf of Takaful funds, issues contracts that transfer Takaful risk and
financial risk.

Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest
rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or
rate, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Takaful risk is the risk
other than financial risk.

Takaful contracts are those contracts that transfer significant Takaful risk. A Takaful
contract is a contract under which the Takaful Operator, on behalf of Takaful funds, has
accepted significant Takaful risk from another party (the participants) by agreeing to
compensate the participants if a specified uncertain future event (the Takaful event)
adversely affects the participants. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant
Takaful risk to be the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of a Takaful
event that are at least 5% more than the benefits payable if the Takaful event did not oceur.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant
underwriting risk.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Product classification (continued)

Once a contract has been classified as a Takaful contract, it remains a Takaful contract for
the remainder of its life time, even if the Takaful risk reduces significantly during this
period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired. Investment contracts
can, however, be reclassified as Takaful contracts after inception if Takaful risk becomes
significant.

Based on the Company's assessment, all such contracts underwritten by the Company
meet the definition of Takaful contracts and accordingly are classified as Takaful contracts.

Takaful contracts are further classified as being either with or without discretionary
participation features (“DPF”). DPF is a contractual right to receive, as a supplement to
guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that are:

- likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
- whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Company; and
- that are contractually based on the:
. performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract;
. realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held
by the Company; or
« the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

Surpluses in the DPF fund are distributable to participants and the Company in accordance
with the relevant terms under the Takaful contracts. The Company however has the
discretion over the amount and timing of the distribution of these surpluses to participants,
subject to the advice of the Company's Appointed Actuary. The Company does not
recognise the guaranteed component separately from the DFF and the whole contract
liabilities, including both guaranteed and discretionary and unallocated surplus at the end of
the reporting period are held within the Takaful contract liabilities.

For financial options and guarantees which are not closely related to the host Takafui
contract, bifurcation is required to measure these embedded derivatives separately at fair
value through profit or loss. However, bifurcation is not required if the embedded derivative
is itself a Takaful contract, or embedded options to surrender Takaful contracts for a fixed
amount (or an amount based on a fixed amount and an interest rate).
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

P

Product classification (continued)

Takaful contracts that contain both a financial risk component and a significant Takaful risk
component are not unbundled and classified as Takaful contracts as the current accounting
policy recognises all Takaful contributions, claims and benefit payments, expenses and
valuation of future benefit payments, inclusive of the investment component, through the
profit or loss.

Retakaful contracts

Takaful funds cede Takaful risk in the normal course of business for its businesses.
Retakaful assets represent balances due from retakaful operators. Amounts recoverable
from retakaful operators are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provision or settled claims associated with the retakaful's policies and are in accordance
with the related retakaful contracts.

Ceded retakaful arrangements do not relieve the fund from its obligations to participants.
Contributions and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed
retakaful.

Retakaful assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs
when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial
recognition of the retakaful asset that the fund may not receive all outstanding amounts
due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the
amounts that the fund will receive from the retakaful operator. The impairment loss is
recorded in profit or loss.

The fund also assumes retakaful risk in the normal course of business for Family Takaful
and General Takaful contracts when applicable.

Contributions and claims on assumed facultative retakaful are recognised as revenue or
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the retakaful were considered direct
business, taking into account the product classification of the ceded retakafui business.
Contributions, claims and other transactions costs on assumed treaty retakaful are
accounted for upon notification by the ceding companies or upon receipts of statements of
accounts.

Retakaful liabilities represent balances due to retakaful operators. Amounts payable are
estimated in a manner consistent with the related retakaful contract.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{(p)

(@)

Retakaful contracts (continued)

Retakaful assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expired or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Retakaful contracts that do not transfer significant Takaful risk are accounted for directly
through the statement of financial position. These are deposit assets or financial liabilities
that are recognised based on the consideration paid or received less an explicit identified
contributions or fees to be retained by the retakaful operator.

Family Takaful contracts

Family Takaful fund

The Family Takaful fund is maintained in accordance with the requirements of the IFSA
and includes the amount attributable to participants, if any. The amount attributable to
participants represents the accumulated surplus attributable to the participants as
determined by an annual actuarial valuation of the Family Takaful fund, and is distributed in
accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed by the Shariah Commitiee of the
Company. Based on the terms of Takaful contracts issued by the Company, no
underwriting surplus is attributable to participants.

Any actuarial deficit in the Family Takaful fund will be made good by the Takaful Operator
via a benevolent loan or Qard and are being reflected as Qard receivable in the separate
financial statement of Takaful Operator and Qard payable in the separate financial
statement of Family Takaful fund.

Contribution income

Contributions include confributions recognised in the Family Takaful fund and investment-
linked funds.

Contributions are recognised as soon as the amount of contributions can be reliably
measured. Initial contribution is recognised from inception date and subsequent
contributions are recognised on due dates.

Contributions of investment-linked funds are in respect of the net creation of units which
represent contributions paid by participants as payment for new ceriificates or subsequent
payments to increase the amount of their certificate. Net creation of units is recognised o
a receipt basis. :
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Family Takafui contracts (continued)

Benefits, claims and expense

Benefits and claims that are incurred during the financial year are recognised when a
claimable event occurs and/or the Takaful Operator is notified.

Recoveries on retakaful claims are accounted for in the same financial year as the original
claims are recognised.

Benefits and claims arising on Family Takaful certificates, including settlement costs, are
accounted for using the case basis method and for this purpose the benefits payable under
a Family Takaful certificate are recognised as follows:

i Maturity or other certificate benefit payments due on specified dates are treated as
claims payable on the due dates;

(i  Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable,
on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the participant or occurrence of
contingency covered.

The benefits payable under investment-linked business are in respect of net creation of
units and are recognised as surrenders.

Family Takaful contract liabilities

These liabilities comprise (i) claims liabilities, (i) actuarial liabilities, (iii) unallocated
surplus/deficit and (iv) AFS fair value adjustment.

(i Claims liabilities

The amounts payable under a Family Takaful certificate in respect of benefits and
claims including settiement costs, are accounted for using the case-by-case method
as set out above under benefits, claims and expenses.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Family Takaful contracts (continued)

(ii)

Actuarial liabilities

Actuarial liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and contributions
are charged.

These liabilities are measured by a prospective actuarial valuation method. The
liability is determined as present value of future benefits from the Takaful funds, less
the present value of future gross tabarru’ arising from the certificate, discounted at
the appropriate risk discount rate. The liabilities are based on best estimate
assumptions and with due regard to significant recent experience. Provision of risk
margin for adverse deviation ("PRAD") at 75% confidence level was made in the
valuation of these liabilities.

In the case of a 1-year Family Takaful certificate or 1-year extension to a Family
Takaful certificate shall be valued according to the following:

(a) For a certificate covering death or survival, the liabilities shall be valued on an
unexpired risk basis using a prospective estimate of expected future payments
arising from future events covered as at the valuation date.

(b) For a certificate covering contingencies other than death or survival, the liability
for such family takaful certificate comprises the provision for unearned
contribution and unexpired risks, as well as for claims outstanding, which
includes an estimate of the incurred claims that have not yet been reported.

The liability is derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.
As the valuation method used to value liabilities are in accordance with the Risk-
Based Capital Framework for Takaful Operators (“RBCT Framework™), the Company

is deemed to have complied with the requirement of a liability adequacy test under
MFRS 4.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

()

n

Family Takaful contracts (continued)
(i)  Unallocated surplus/deficits

Unallocated surplus represents the remaining underwriting surplus in the
participants’ special account that may be distributed to the Takaful Operator and
participants upon recommendation by the Appointed Actuary, subject to approval by
the Shariah Committee and Board of Directors, plus the remaining balance of special
fund reserves as set out in Note 2.2(l). Unallocated surplus is reported as a separate
component of the Takaful Contract liabilities in Family Takaful fund.

Unallocated deficits represents accumulated deficit in the Family Takaful fund. This
is reported as accumulated losses in Family Takaful fund and the Company's equity
in the statements of financial position.

(iv)  AFS fair value adjustment

Where unrealised gains or losses arise on AFS financial assets of the Family Takaful
fund, the adjustment to the Takaful contract liabilities equal to the effect that the
realisation of those gains or losses at the end of the reporting period would have had
on those liabilities is recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

General Takaful contracts
General Takaful fund

The General Takaful fund is maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Takaful
Act, 1984 which is subsequently replaced by IFSA 2013 and consists of participants’
account and participants’ special account.

Any deficit in the participants’ !special account will be made good by the Takaful Operator
via a benevolent loan or Qard and are being reflected as Qard receivable in the Takaful
Operator’'s fund and Qard payable in the General Takaful fund.

Contribution income

Contributions are recognised in a financial year in respect of risks assumed during that
particular financial year. Contributions from direct business are recognised during the
financial year upon the issuance of debit notes. Contributions in respect of risks incepted

- for which debit notes have not been raised as of the balance sheet date are accrued at that

date.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Summary of significant accounting palicies (continued)

(r) General Takaful contracts (continued)

Claims and expenses

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to profit or loss as incurred based on
the estimated liabilities for compensation owed to certificate holders or third parties
damaged by the certificated holders. They inciude direct and indirect claims settlements
costs and arise from events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period even if
they have not yet been reported to the Company.

General Takaful contracts liabilities

General Takaful contracts liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and
contributions are charged. These liabilities comprise of (i} contribution liabilities, (i) claims
liabilities, (iii) participants’ account, (iv) AFS fair value adjustment and (v) unallocated
surplus/deficits. Provision of risk margin for adverse deviation (“PRAD") at 75% confidence
level was made in the valuation of these liabilities.

(i) Contribution liabilities
The contribution liabilities refer to the higher of;

(a) the aggregate of the provision for unearned contribution resetrves (“UCR”) or

(b) the best estimate value of the provision for unexpired risk (“URR") at the
valuation date and the PRAD calculated at the total fund level. The URR for
each class of business is estimated as the adjusted net UCR multiplied by a
selected Ultimate Loss Ratio (“ULR”). In general, the ULR is the average of the
three most recent loss years' ULR.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risks and a liability
adequacy test is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of
expected claims over unearned contribution. If these estimates show that the
carrying amount of the unearned contribution less related deferred acquisition costs
is inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in profit or loss by setting up a provision
for liability adequacy.

As the valuation method used are in accordance with the Risk-Based Capital

Framework for Takaful Operators (“RBCT Framework”), the Company is deemed to
have complied with the requirement of a liability adequacy test under MFRS 4.
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(Company No. 738090-M)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) General Takaful contracts (continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Claims liabilities

Claims liabilities are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the date of the statement of financial position, whether reported or not,
together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of
salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in the notification and
settlement of certain types of claims, therefore, the ultimate cost of these claims
cannot be known with certainty at the date of the statement of financial position. The
liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim
projection techniques based on empirical data and current assumptions. The liability
is not discounted for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or
catastrophe reserves is recognised. The liabilties are derecagnised when the
contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Participants’ account

Participants’ account comprise of participants’ investment account and participants’
special account.

Participants’ investment account represents the proportion of contributions set aside
for the purpose of investment. Participants’ special account represents the
accumulated participants' share in the net surplus of the General Takaful revenue
account, distributable in accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed by the
Shariah Committee of the Company. In the event of actuarial deficit, participants’
special account represents accumulated actuarial deficits in the participants’ special
account and will be made good by the Takaful Operator via a benevolent loan or
Qard payable.

AFS fair value adjustment

Where unrealised gains or losses arise on AFS financial assets of the General
Takaful fund, the adjustment to the Takaful contract liabilities equal to the effect that
the realisation of those gains or losses at the end of the reporting period would have
had on those liabilities is recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) General Takaful contracts (continued)

(v)

Unallocated surplus/deficits

Unallocated surplus represents remaining underwriting surplus after repayment of
Qard, where a certain percentage of it may be set aside as contingency reserves
and the remaining may be donated to the charitable organisations subject to the
approval of Shariah Committee. Unallocated surplus is reported as a separate
component of the Takaful contract liabilities in General Takaful fund.

Unallocated deficits represents accumulated deficit in the General Takaful fund. This
is reported as accumulated losses in General Takaful fund’'s and the Company's
equity in the statements of financial position.

{s) Other revenue recognition

Investment income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
effective yield of the asset.

Investment profit of Family Takaful and General Takaful funds is shared by the participants
and the Takaful Operator at an agreed percentage, in accordance with the principles of
Mudharabah basis as approved by the Company’s Shariah Committee and agreed between
the participants and the Company.

(t) Foreign currencies

(i)

Functional and presentation currencies

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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(Company No. 738090-M)
(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

(t) Foreign currencies (continued)

)

(i)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functiona!l currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting in the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss of respective funds.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation
that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in the extremely rare case
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company. The Company does not recognise contingent assets
but discloses their existence where inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not
virtually certain.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each date of the statement of financial position and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate,

(w) Non-current assets (or disposal group) held-for-sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets {or disposal group) are classified as assets held-for-sale when their
carrying amounts are recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Non-current assets (or disposal group) held-for-sale and discontinued operations

(continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or is
classified as held-for-sale and that represents a separate major line of business. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future. These
factors could include:

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements made in applying the Company’s accounting policies

In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is often required in
respect of items where choice of specific policy could materially affect the reported
results and financial position of the Company. However, the Directors are of the
opinion that there are currently no accounting policies which require significant
judgement to be exercised.

Key sources of estimation unceriainty and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are outlined below.

{0 Claims liabilities of General Takaful business

For the financial year ended 30 June 2018, the claims estimates have
been computed by an independent actuarial firm, Actuarial Partners
Consulting Sdn Bhd (“Actuarial Partners”). Actuarial Partners had
considered the Link Ratio method with a Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF")
adjustment on an incurred claims basis for all classes of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions (continued)

(i

(ii)

Claims liabilities of General Takaful business (continued)

Bornhuetter-Ferguson method is an extension of the Link Ratio method,
where claims patterns experienced in the past is used to project the
patterns for future years. As the projected ultimate claims estimated by
the Link Ratio method for the more recent development years can be
unreliable for some classes of business, Ultimate Loss Ratio (“ULR") is
selected where appropriate and incorporated into the projection under
Bornhuetter-Ferguson method. The selection is based on the resultant
loss ratios from the Link Ratio method, taking into consideration of
historical experience, industry loss ratios as well as the claims incurred to-
date ratios.

Actuarial liabilities for Family Takaful fund

Actuarial liabilities as determined by the annual actuarial valuation are
based on Guidelines on Valuation Basis of Liabilities of Family Takaful
Business (BNM/RH/GL 004-20} and Risk Based Capital Framework for
Takaful Operators {(BNM/RH/GL 004-23).

For Family Takaful plans, the actuarial liabilities are determined computed
by an independent actuarial firm, Actuarial Partners Consuiting Sdn Bhd
(“Actuarial Partners”) and were set up based on the unearned contribution
reserve basis in which the proportion is equivalent to the ratio of the
period from the valuation date to the period of next tabarru’ dripping
period and the period of cover provided by risk charges recognised.

The following methodology is used in determining the unearned
contribution reserve:

. For long term liabilities, the cash flow reserves are set up for
mortality benefits on a best estimate basis, which results in reserves
being equal to a proportion of the risk charges, for unexpired risk or
unearned contribution. Cash flow reserves for future expenses are
not set up as management expenses and commissions are paid
from the Takaful Operator.

Details of key assumptions used and the sensitivity analysis are shown in

Note 30(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENTS

Takaful Operator/Company

Renovation,
equipment Capital
Furniture and Motor work-in-

and fittings  computers  Vehicles progress Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'GOO0

Cost

At 1 July 2016 370 2,568 509 432 3,879

Additions - 463 - 820 1,283

Reclassification (Note 4) - 92 - {155) {63)
At 30 June 2017 370 3,123 509 1,097 5,099

Additions - 41 - 578 619

Reclassification {Note 4) - - - (929) (929)
Write Off - - - (134) (134)
At 30 June 2018 370 3,164 509 612 4,655

Accumulated

depreciation

At 1 July 2016 312 1,686 259 - 2,257

Charge for the financial year 39 471 58 - 568

At 30 June 2017 351 2,157 37 - 2,825

Charge for the financial year 15 436 190 - 641

At 30 June 2018 366 2,593 507 - 3,466

Net carrying amount

At 30 June 2017 19 966 192 1,097 2,274

At 30 June 2018 4 571 2 612 1,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Takaful Operator/Company

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000

Cost

At 1 July 13,183 12,217
Additions 268 903
Reclassification (Note 3) 829 63
At 30 June 14,380 13,183

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 July 8,228 6,208
Amortisation 2,371 2,020
At 30 June 10,599 8,228
Net carrying amount 3,781 4,955
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

5

FINANCIAL ASSETS

30 June 2018

Government Investment [ssues
Islamic bonds

Equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Unit and property trust funds
Investments in investment-linked funds
Structured investments

Accrued profit

Total

30 June 2017

Government Investment Issues

Islamic bonds

Equity securities quoted in Malaysia
Unit and property trust funds
Investments in investment-linked funds
Structured investments

Accrued profit

Total

Discontinued

Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2,613 36,440 39,052 1,202
53,575 207,531 261,107 34,182
8,962 53,418 62,379 6,569
208 1,262 1,470 27,260

5,451 - - -

- 4,793 4,793 -
601 2,569 3,171 - 271
71,410 308,013 371,972 69,484

General Farmily
Takaful Takaful Takaful

Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
2,670 - 18,182 20,852
56,341 42,483 188,103 286,927
5408 7,708 50,703 63,817
3,436 28,001 1,060 32,497
5,443 - - -
- - 4,638 4,638
558 336 2,001 2,895
73,856 78,526 264,687 411,626
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

5

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) The Company's financial assets are summarised by categories as follows:

(i

(ii)

30 June 2018
AFS financial assets
FVTPL

Current
Non-current

AFS

30 June 2018

Government Investment Issues

Islamic bonds

Equity securities quoted in
Malaysia

Unit and property trust funds

Investments in investment-linked
funds

Accrued profit

FVTPL

30 June 2018

Government Investment Issues

Islamic bonds

Equity securities quoted in
Malaysia

Unit and property trust funds

Structured investments

Accrued profit

Discontinued

Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund  Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
71,410 272,802 338,761 69,484

- 33,211 33,211 -
71,410 306,013 371,972 69,484
601 2,570 3171 271
70,809 303,443 368,801 69,213
71,410 306,013 371,972 69,484
2,613 33,591 36,203 1,202
53,575 196,225 249,800 34,182
8,962 39,716 48,678 6,569
208 862 1,070 27,260

5,451 - - -
601 2,408 3,010 271
71,410 272,802 338,761 69,484

- 2,849 2,849 -

- 11,306 11,306 -

- 13,702 13,702 -

- 400 400 -

- 4,793 4,793 -

- 161 161 -

- 33,211 33,211 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

5  FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(@) The Company's financial assets are summarised by categories as follows: (continued)

General Family

Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
30 June 2017 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'GOO
AFS financial assets 73,856 78,526 233,391 380,330
FVTPL financial assets - 31,296 31,296

73,856 78,526 264,687 411,626

Current 9,058 12,036 6,804 27,898
Non-current 64,798 66,490 257,883 383,728

73,856 78,526 264,687 411,626

(iy AFS
30 June 2017
Government Investment Issues 2,670 - 17,113 19,783
[slamic bonds 56,341 42,483 177,745 276,569
Equity securities quoted in
Malaysia 5,408 7,706 35,927 49,041
Unit and property trust funds 3,436 28,001 701 32,138
Investments in investment-linked
funds 5,443 - - -
Structured investments - - - -
Accrued profit 558 336 1,905 2,799
73,856 78,526 233,391 380,330
(il FVTPL
30 June 2017
‘Government Investment Issues - - 1,069 1,069
Islamic bonds - - 10,358 10,358
Equity securities quoted in
Malaysia - - 14,776 14,776
Unit and property trust funds - - 359 359
Structured investments - - 4,638 4,638
Accrued profit - - 96 96
- - 31,296 31,296
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738080-M)
(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

5  FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(b) Carrying values of financial investments (continued)

As at 30 June 2018, impairment losses of impaired available-for-sale financial assets of
RM3.56 million is RM 4.28 million (2017: RM0.80 million). A reconciliation of the allowance
for impairment losses for available-for-sale financial assets is as follows:

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 July 2017 1,408 3,893 5,301 988
Charge for the financial
year (Note 20) 384 3,191 3,575 702
At 30 June 2018 1,792 7,084 8,876 1,690
General Family
Takaiul Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 July 2016 1,358 900 3,227 5,485
Charge for the financial
year (Note 20) 50 88 666 804
At 30 June 2017 1,408 988 3,893 6,289

(c) Fair value hierarchy

The table below shows the financial assets recorded at fair value by their valuation method.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3; Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data {(uncbservable inputs).

-88-



HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

5  FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
AFS FVTPL AFS
Family

Family Takaful General

Takaful Takaful Fund/ Takaful

Operator Fund Company Company Fund

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

30 June 2018

Levei 1 9,170 40,577 49,747 14,101 33,830
Levei 2 62,240 232,225 289,014 19,110 35,654
71,410 272,802 338,761 33,211 69,484
AFS FVTPL

Family

General Family : Takaful

Takaful Takaful Takaful Fund/

Operator Fund Fund Company Company

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

30 June 2017

Level 1 8,844 35,707 36,628 81,179 15,135
Level 2 65,012 42,819 196,763 299,151 16,161
73,856 78,526 233,391 380,330 31,296
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

6

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2018
Fixed and cash deposits
with licensed financial
institutions - 6,257 6,257 -
Accrued profit - 43 43 -
- 6,305 6,305 -
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
30 June 2017 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Fixed and cash deposits
with licensed financial
institutions - 413 6,467 6,880
Accrued profit - 7 53 60
- 420 6,520 6,940

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values at the date of the statement
of financial position, and are receivable within one year.

RETAKAFUL ASSETS Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takafut
Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2018
Retakaful of Takaful contracts 43,446 43,446 64,084
General Family
Takaful Takaful
Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
30 June 2017
Retakaful of Takaful contracts 72,020 36,831 108,851
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

8

TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES

30 June 2018

Outstanding contributions including agents,
brokers and co-takaful balances

Less: Allowance for impairment

Amount due from retakaful operators
Less: Allowance for impairment

Gross amounts of recognised
financial assets

Less: Gross amounts of recognised
financial liabilities set off in the
statement of financial position

Allowance for impairment

Net amounts of financial assets presented
in the statement of financial position
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Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful
Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'0C0 RM'000

6,494 6,494 4,064

- - (148)

6,494 6,494 3,916

103 103 2,670

- - (2,341)

103 103 329

6,597 6,697 4,245

6,597 6,597 8,150

- - (1,416)

6,597 6,597 6,734

- - (2,489)

8,597 6,597 4,245




HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

8

TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

30 June 2017

Outstanding contributions including agents,

brokers and co-takaful balances
Less: Allowance for impairment

Amount due from retakaful operators
Less: Allowance for impairment

Gross amounts of recognised
financial assets

Less: Gross amounts of recognised
financial liabilities set off in the
statement of financial position

Allowance for impairment

Net amounts of financial assets presented

in the statement of financial position
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General Family
Takaful Takaful
Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
15,350 4,513 19,863
(26) - (26}
15,324 4513 19,837
2,878 103 2,981
(2,823) - {2,823)
55 103 158
15,379 4,616 19,995
19,650 4,616 24,266
(1,422) - (1,422)
18,228 4,616 22,844
(2,849) - (2,849)
15,379 4,616 19,985




HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

9 OTHER RECEIVABLES Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'0Q0 RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2018
Dividend receivables 11 88 99 11
Amount due from General
Takaful Fund 15,281 - - -
Amount due from Family
Takaful Fund 13,066 - - -
Other receivables 3,488 4,164 7,652 375
31,8458 4252 7,751 386
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'Q00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2017
Dividend receivables 22 22 137 181
Amount due from General
Takaful Fund 10,442 - - -
Amount due from Family
Takaful Fund 9,079 - - -
Other receivables 3,615 2,597 3,406 9,618
23,158 2,619 3,543 9,799

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values at the date of the statement
of financial position, and are receivable within one year.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

30 June 2018

Cash and bank balances
Short term deposits
Accrued profit

30 June 2017

Cash and bank balances
Short term deposits
Accrued profit

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,444 5712 7,156 1,897
5,982 63,801 69,783 24,027
3 31 34 8
7,429 69,544 76,973 25,932
Generai Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
925 2,714 6,812 10,451
106 3,741 21,508 25,355
- 1 10 11
1,031 6,456 28,330 35,817
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

11

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD-
FOR-SALE

The Islamic Financial Services Act, 2013 ("IFSA") requires all composite Takaful
Operators to segregate their composite licences into separate Family Takaful and
General Takaful licences by 1 July 2018. In compliance with this Act, the company has
surrendered the General Takaful license and proceed with an application for a single
licence to continue its Family Takaful business and to relinquish its composite Takaful
license by 1 July 2018.

Accordingly, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income and statement of cash flows of General Takaful Fund have
been classified as discontinued operations.

The components of assets and liabilities held-for-sale attributable to the discounted
operations are as follows :

(i) Assets of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale

2018

General

Takaful
Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000
Available for sale financial assets (note 5) 69,484 60,484
Deferred tax assets (note 16) 653 653
Retakaful assets (note 7) 64,084 64,084
Takaful receivables (note 8) 4,245 4,245
Other receivables (note 9) 386 386
Cash and cash equivalents {note 10) 25,032 25,932
164,784 164,784

(i) Liabilities of a dispesal group classified as held-for-sale

2018

General

Takaful
Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000
Takaful contract liabilities (note 12) 116,158 116,158
Tax payable 1,883 1,883
Takaful payable (note 13) 28,211 28,211
Other payable (note 15) 18,532 18,532
S 164,784 164,784
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

13 TAKAFUL PAYABLES

Lo . Discontinued
Continuing operations

operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful
Fund Company Fund
RM'Q00 RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2018
Due to agents and intermediaries - - 1,028
Due to retakaful operators and cedants 12,098 12,098 27,183
12,098 12,098 28,211

Gross amounts of recognised

financial liabilities 12,098 12,098 29,627
Less: Gross amounts of recognised

financial assets set off in the

statement of financial position - - (1,416)
Net amounts of financial liabilities presented
in the statement of financial position 12,098 12,098 28,211
General Family
Takaful Takaful
Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2017
Due to agents and intermediaries 1,495 - " 1,495
Due to retakaful operators and cedants 34,773 12,459 47,232
36,268 12,459 48,727
Gross amounts of recognised financial liabilities 37,680 12,459 50,149
Less: Gross amounts of recognised financial assets
set off in the statement of financial position (1,422) - (1,422)
Net amounts of financial liabilities presented in the
statement of financial position 36,268 12,459 48,727

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate the fair values at the date of the statement
of financial position, and are payable within one year.
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14

15

EXPENSE LIABILITIES

At the beginning of the financial year
Increase during the financial year

At the end of the financial year

OTHER PAYABLES

30 June 2018

Contribution deposits

Amount due to Takaful Operator Fund
Sundry payables and accruals

30 June 2017

Contribution deposits

Amount due to Takaful Operator Fund
Sundry payables and accruals

Takaful Operator/Company

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
11,780 10,710
2,783 1,070
14,563 11,780
Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1 6,622 6,623 156
- 13,065 - 15,281
14,910 5,138 4,766 3,095
14,911 24 825 11,389 18,532
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
- 170 3,073 3,243
- 10,442 9,079 -
15,422 2,314 3,853 21,589
15,422 12,926 16,005 24,832
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16 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes related to the same

authority.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsets, are shown in the statements of

financial position.

The movements in deferred tax balances are as follows:

At 1 July 20186

Recognised in:

Profit or loss

Other comprehensive income
At 30 June 2017/1 July 2017
Recognised in:

Profit or loss (Note 24)

Other comprehensive income
At 30 June 2018

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

30 June 2018
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

30 June 2017
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

Discontinued

Continuing operations  operations

Family General

Takaful Takaful Takaful

Operator Fund Company Fund

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

649 (552) 97 618
(299) (160) (459) (94)
(75) 102 27 (96)

275 (610) (335) 428

45 287 332 4

173 266 439 221

493 (57) 436 653
(732) (323) (1,055) (125)

1,225 266 1,491 778

493 (57) 436 653

General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful

Operator Fund Fund Company

RM'000 RM'CO0 RM'C00 RM'000
(1,160) (346) (661) (2,167)

1,435 774 51 2,260

275 428 (610) 93
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16 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'C00
30 June 2018
Current 568 - 568 598
Non-current {75) {57) (132) 55
493 (57) 436 653
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'GOO RM'000
30 June 2017
Current 304 684 - a88
Non-current (29) (256) {610) (895)
275 428 (610) a3

The components and movements of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the financial year prior
to offsetting are as follows:

Property
and Financial Takaful
equipment assets  receivables Payables Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Continuining operations
Takaful Operator
At 1 July 2016 (1,687) (574) - 2,910 649
Recognised in: .
Profit or loss 1,286 (55) - (1,530) (299)
Other comprehensive
income - {75) - - (75)
At 30 June 2017/1 July 2017 (401) (704) - 1,380 275
Recognised in:
Profit or loss 255 - - (210) 45
Other comprehensive _
income - 173 - - 173
At 30 June 2018 (146) {531) - 1,170 493
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16 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

Property
and Financial Takaiul
equipment assels  receivables Payables Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Discontinued operations
General Takaful Fund
At 1 July 2016 - (1086) 724 - 618
Recognised in:
Profit or loss - (54) (40) - (94)
Other comprehensive
income - {96) - - (98)
At 30 June 2017/1 July 2017 - (256) 684 - 428
Recognised in:
Profit or loss - - 4 - 4
Other comprehensive
income - 221 - - 221
At 30 June 2018 - (35) 688 - 653
Continuining operations
Family Takaful Fund
At 1 July 2016 - (552) - - (552)
Recognised in:
Profit or loss - (160) - - {160)
Other comprehensive
income - 102 - - 102
At 30 June 2017/1 July 2017 - {610) - - (610)
Recognised in:
Profit or loss - 287 - - 287
Other comprehensive
income - 266 - - 266
At 30 June 2018 - {57) - - (57)
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16 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

Property
and Financial Takaful
equipment assets  receivables Payables Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'0C0 RM'000

Continuining operations
Company
At 1 July 2016 {(1,687) (1,126) - 2,910 97
Recognised in:
Profit or loss 1,286 (215) - (1,530) (459)
Other comprehensive

income - 27 - - 27
At 30 June 2017/1 July 2017 (401) (1,314) - 1,380 (335)
Recognised in:
Profit or loss 255 287 - (210) 332
Other comprehensive

income - 439 - - 439
At 30 June 2018 {146) {588) - 1,170 436

17 SHARE CAPITAL
Takaful OperatorfCompany
30.6.2018 30.6.2017
No. of No. of
shares shares
‘000 RM'000 ‘000 RM'000

Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
Authorised:
At the beginning/end of

the financial year 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
At the beginning/end of

the financial year 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

The new Companies Act 2016 ("New Act"), which came into effect on 31 January 2017,
abolished the concept of authorised share capital and par value of share capital. There is no
impact on the numbers of ordinary shares in issue or the relative entittement of any of the
members as a result of this transition.
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18

INVESTMENT INCOME

2018

AFS financial assets

Profit income

Accretion of discounts/
(amortisation of premiums) - net

Dividend income

FVTPL

Profit income

Accretion of discounts/
(amortisation of premiums) - net

Dividend income

Loans and receivables
Profit income

Cash and cash equivalents
Profit income

Less: Share of investment profit of
Takaful funds with Takafui
Cperator

Less: Investment Charges

Discontinued

Continuing operations  operations

Family General

Takaful Takaiul Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2,505 10,361 12,866 1,575
(10) 36 26 (7)

253 1,066 1,319 1,087

- 562 562 -

- (1) (1 -

- 454 454 -

8 246 254 18

254 1,164 1,418 507
3,010 13,888 16,898 3,180
- (967) - -

- (3) (3) 24

3,010 12,918 16,895 3,204
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18 INVESTMENT INCOME (CONTINUED)

General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2017
AFS financial assets
Profit income 2,647 1,689 7.904 12,240
(Amortisation of premiums)/

accretion of discounts - net 16 ()] 50 60
Dividend income 244 806 914 1,964
FVTPL
Profit income - - 503 503
Accretion of discounts/

{amortisation of premiums) - net - - {1 (0
Dividend income - - 370 370
Loans and receivables
Profit income - 16 312 328
Cash and cash equivalents
Profit income 95 434 922 1,501

3,002 2,989 10,974 16,965
Less: Share of investment profit of
Takaful funds with Takaful
Operator - - (1,027) -
Less: Investment Charges (H (1) (2) (4)
3,001 2,988 9,945 16,961
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19 REALISED GAINS/(LOSSES)

Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2018
AFS financial assets
Quoted equities 565 818 1,383 371
Government Investment issues - 88 88 29
Islamic bond - 33 33 -
Unit Trust 2 - 2 -
FVTPL
Quoted equities - 41 41 -
Islamic bonds - (1 (1) -
567 979 1,546 400
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000
2017
AFS financial assets
Quoted equities 138 249 1,423 1,810
Government Investment issues - (11) - {(11)
Islamic bond - - 64 64
Unit Trust - 1 - 1
FVTPL
Quoted equities - - 714 714
Islamic bonds - - 80 80
138 239 2,281 2,658
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20 FAIR VALUE GAINS/(LOSSES)

Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2018
Impairment of AFS financial
assets (Note 5) (384) (3,191) (3,575) (702)
Fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss - (1,445) (1,445) -
(384) (4,636) (5,020) (702)
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2017
Impairment of AFS financial
assets (Note 5) (50) (88) (666) (804)
Fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss - - 885 885
(50) (88) 219 81
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21 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2018
Write back of impairment loss
on Takaful receivables - 360

Other income 2,521 423 2,944 -
Elimination of income from

investment-linked funds - - (420) -
2,521 423 2,524 360
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'000
2017
Write back of impairment loss
on Takaful receivables - 170 336 506
Other income 414 - 3,986 4,400
Elimination of income from
investment-linked funds - - - (347)
414 170 4,322 4,559
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22 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Takaful Operator/Company

Staff costs:

Salary and bonus

Social security costs

Employees' provident fund

Other staff related expenses
Directors' fees (Note 28)
Shariah committee remuneration and other expenses

- remuneration

- other expenses

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4)
Auditors' remuneration:

Audit related services

- current year

Non-audit related services
Other professional fee
Rental of properties
Shared service fee
Campaigns and incentives
Other expenses
Total

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000
11,459 11,886
95 97
1,822 1,893
561 466
177 238
182 180

3
641 568
2,371 2,020
278 298
85 188
2,001 1,840
1,111 1,116
4,452 3,629
6,023 2,141
8,639 9,573
39,890 36,133

The remuneration, including benefits-in-kind, attributable to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company during the financial year amounted to RM347,296. There is no remuneration, including
benefits-in-kind, attributable to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company during the

financial year 2017 due to resignation of CEO on 28 June 2016.

Included in the staff costs are the remuneration for key management personnel, which is

disclosed in Note 28,
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22 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
The total remuneration of the Shariah Committee members is as follows:

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'0C0

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Ab. Mumin Ab. Ghani 36 36
Asst. Prof. Dr. Uzaimah |brahim 36 36
Dr Muhammad Aunurrochim Mas'ad Salleh 36 36
Dr Nurul Aini binti Muhamed 36 36
Dr Asmak Binti Ab Rahman 36 36
Total 180 180

During the financial year, Directors and Officers of the Company are covered under the
Directors’ & Officers’ Liability Insurance/Takaful in respect of liabilities arising from acts
committed in their respective capacity as, inter alia, Directors and Officers of the Company
subject to the term of the policy. The total amount of premium for the Directors’ and Officers's
Liability Insurance/Takaful was paid by the intermediate holding company, HLA Holdings Sdn
Bhd.

23 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'00Q RM'000 RM000 RM'000
2018
Others (725) (2,928) (3,653) (743)
Elimination of income from
investment-linked funds - - 420 -
{725) (2,928) (3,233) {743)
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2017
Others (447) (693) (1,346) (2,486)
Elimination of income from
investment-linked funds - - - 347
(447) (693) (1,346) (2,139)
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24 TAXATION
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
Family General
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2018
Current tax:
- In respect of current financial year 3,655 987 4,642 1,882
- Under/(over) provision in prior
financial years 1,869 (321) 1,548 (2,052)
Deferred tax income (45) (287) (332) (4)
5479 379 5,858 (174)
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
2017 '
Current tax:
- In respect of current financial year 3,668 2,127 940 6,735
Deferred tax expenses 299 g4 160 553
3,967 2,221 1,100 7,288

The income tax for the Takaful Operator and General Takaful funds are calculated based on the
tax rate of 24% (2017: 24%) of the estimated assessable profit for the financial year. The
income tax for the Family Takaful fund is calculated based on tax rate of 8% (2017: 8%) of the
assessable investment income net of allowable deductions for the financial year.

The numerical reconciliation between taxation and the product of accounting profit multiplied by
the Malaysian tax rate of the Company is as follows:

2018 2017
RM'G00 RM'000

Profit before zakat and taxation 11,336 4,207
Taxation at Malaysian statutory rate of 24% (2017: 24%) 2,721 1,010
Income not subject to tax {10,204) (2,815)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,185 5,772
Effect of difference in tax rate 287 3,321
Under provision in prior financial years 1,869 -
Tax expense for the financial year 5,858 7,288
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25 INVESTMENT-LINKED BUSINESS

(a) Assets and liabilities as at

Assets

Fair value through profit and loss financial assets
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment-linked business assets

Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Tax payables

Other payables

Amount due to non-investment linked Family
Takaful Fund*

Investment-linked business liabilities

Net asset value of funds

Represented by:

Unitholders' account

At beginning of the financial year
Net creation of units

Net cancellation of units

Deficit for the financial year

30.6.2018  30.6.2017
RM'000 RM'000
25,621 26,258
2,373 393
3,902 4,163
31,896 30,814
96 155
34 144
873 1,399
1,672 -
2,675 1,698
29,221 29,116
29,116 25,956
7,346 5,932
(4,235) (1,896)
(3,006) (876)
29,221 29116

* Eliminated in preparing separate financial statements of Family Takaful fund.

{b) Income and expenses for the financial year ended 30 June

Investment income
Realised gain on disposal of investment
Fair value (loss)/gains on investments
Other expenses
Deficit before taxation
Taxation:

- current tax

- deferred tax
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RM'000 RM'000
867 817

40 792
(1,408) 925
(2,572) (3,211)
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26 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION ON CASH FLOW

Discontinued
Continuing operations  operations
Family Genetal
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Company Fund
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 -
2018
Cash flows from;
Operating activities 7,285 41,214 48,499 19,476
investing activities (887) - {887) -
6,398 41,214 47,612 19,476
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalent 6,398 41,214 47,612 19,476
Cash and cash equivalents:
At beginning of financial year 1,031 28,330 29,361 6,456
At end of financial year 7,429 69,544 76,973 25,932
General Family
Takaful Takaful Takaful
Operator Fund Fund Company
RM'0Q0 RMO00 RM'000 RM'000
2017
Cash flows from:
Operating activities (1,399) (32,418) (24,968) (58,785)
Investing activities {2,186) - - (2,186)
{3,585) (32,418) {24,968) (60,971)
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalent (3,585) (32,418) (24,968) (60,971)
At beginning of financial year 4616 38,874 53,208 96,788
At end of financial year 1,031 6,456 28,330 35,817
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties of, and their relationships with the Company, are as follows:

Related Parties Relationship

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad Ultimate holding company

Hong Leong Financial Group Penultimate holding company

HLA Holdings Sdn Bhd Immediate holding company

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Corporation, Japan Substantial Shareholder of the Company
Hong Leong Assurance Berhad Subsidiary of immediate holding company
Hong Leong Bank Berhad Subsidiary of ultimate holding company
Hong Leong Islamic Bank Berhad Subsidiary of ultimate holding company
Guoline Intellectual Assets Limited Subsidiary of ultimate holding company

The Directors are of the opinion that related party transactions were entered at agreed terms and
conditions in the normal course of business.

Significant related party transactions with related parties during the financial year are as follows:

2018 2017
RM'000 RM'000

Transactions with companies within the Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad Group:

- Commission expenses {11,379) (8,365)
- Fund management fee (1,427) (1,208)
- Profit from Islamic deposits and money market placements

with licensed banks : 69 243
- Bank charges (122) (115)
- Office rental expenses (1,097) (1,1186)
- Shared services fee (4,452) (3,629)
- Royalty fee {4) -
- Profit from investment in Islamic bonds 479 483

The related party transactions above are primarily with related parties domiciled in Malaysia.
Companies within the Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad Group include Hong Leong

Bank Berhad, Hong Leong Islamic Bank Berhad and Hong Leong Assurance Berhad where
there were related party transactions.
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Included in the statement of financial position of the Company are significant related party

balances, represented by the following:

28

30.6.2018  30.6.2017
RM'000 RM'000
Amount due from/(to) other related companies within the Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad Group:
- Bank balances 7,696 6,381
- Islamic deposits and money market placements with licensed
banks - 3,092
- Rental deposit included in other receivables 322 322
- Amount due to related companies (639) (152)
- Investment in Islamic bonds 10,034 10,029

Amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of
repayment.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
the planning, directing and control of the Company’s activities, either directly or otherwise. The
key management personnel include all the Directors of the Company, and selected senior
management members.

Key management personnel's remuneration is as follows:
2018 2017

RM'000 RM'000

Non-Executive Directors

Fees:
Dr Aznan bin Hasan 60 50
Encik Mustapha bin Hamat (Retired 29 November 2017) 25 96
YM Tunku Dato' Mahmood Fawzy bin Tunku Muhiyiddin 80 92
Mr Martin Giles Manen (Appointed on 16 April 2018) 12 -
177 238
Key management personnel
Short term employee benefits:
Salary and other remuneration 2,653 1,871
Defined contribution retirement plan 384 295
Benefits-in-kKind/perquisite 170 135
3,207 2,301
Total 3,384 2,539
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

(@)

(b)

Risk management framework

The Company has in place a risk management framework and methodology which is
adapted from the local regulatory requirements, as well as Hong Leong Bank Risk
Management framework, designed to support the identification, assessment, monitoring
and control of significant risks covering market risk, credit risk, operational risk and
Takaful risk.

The day-to-day responsibility for risk management and control is embedded into the
respective business lines and the management of each business lines is responsible to
ensure that risk management process is functioning effectively. Risk Management
functions as an independent party that is responsible for assessing and reporting the
potential impact and prohability of the significant risks identified across the organisation
and the adequacy of related mitigation programs.

The Integrated Risk Management keeps the senior management and Group Board Risk
Management Commitees ("GBRMC") abreast of material risks that require aftention and
action plan on a regular basis.

Capital management objectives, policies and approach

Capital management risk is defined as the risk of having an insufficient capital base,
which undermines execution of strategic objectives, reduces the ability of a company to
cope with losses not anticipated, and reduces confidence of the market, certificate
holders and creditors.

The Company’s capital management objective is to maintain effective capital
management processes and a prudent level of capital resources, consistent with the risk
appetite agreed by the Board from time to time. It is designed to provide the principles to
ensure the efficient management of capital where capital resources must be managed in
a way which optimises returns to Shareholders, stakeholders and meets the expectation
of the regulator.

The capital management strategy of the Company is to allocate capital efficiently and

support the development of business by ensuring that returns on capital employed meet
the requirements of Shareholders and maintain the level of capital as required by BNM.
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29 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital management objectives, policies and approach (continued)

Risk governance structure

The Company emphasises good and effective governance structure with three lines of
defense and a healthy risk culture to provide reasonable assurance to the GBRMC and
Board of Directors:

(a)

(b)

(©)

First line of defense: Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, all
operating and business units are responsible and accountable for the effective
and timely implementation of action plans. The monthly Executive Committee
(*EXCO") meetings build an appropriate risk culture to encourage constant
communication.

Second line of defense: Risk Management and Compliance, a risk oversight
department, is tasked to formulate and continuously improve the Risk
Management Framework and to promote risk awareness culture with regular
meetings with the senior management and/or line managers in the light of risk
analysis and risk action plan; and

Third line of defense: Internal Auditors perform a “check and balance” role by
conducting independent and regular reviews on the Company's internal contro!
systems and Risk Management Framework.

Requlatory capital requirements

The capital structure of the Company as at the date of the statement of financial
position, consisting of all funds as prescribed under the RBCT is provided below:

30.6.2018  30.6.2017
RM'000 RM'000

Eligible Tier 1 capital

- Share capital 100,000 100,000

- Reserves, including retained earnings (3,488) (10,384)
Eligible Tier 2 capital

- Eligible reserves 2,489 4,142
Amount deducted from capital {(4,957) (6,127)
Total capital available 94,043 87,631

The Company has met the minimum capital requirements specified in the RBC
Framework for the financial year ended.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

30 TAKAFUL RISK (CONTINUED)

(b)

Family Takaful/Company

Takatful risk is the risk that inadequate or inappropriate underwriting, claims management,
product design and pricing will expose the Company to financial loss and may result in the
inability to meet its liabilities.

The Company’s Family Takaful businesses are exposed to a range of Takaful risks from
various products. In providing financial advisory services coupled with Takaful protection,
the Company has to manage risks such as mortality (the death of policyholder), morbidity
(ill health), persistency, product design and pricing.

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure risks are well diversified in
terms of type of risk and the level of covered benefits. This is broadly achieved through
the use of medical screening to ensure participants’ health condition and family medical
history, regular review of actual claims experience as well as detailed claims procedures.

The mortality and morbidity risks are managed through the use of retakaful to transfer
excessive risk exposures, appropriate actuarial techniques as well as other mitigation
measures.

The table below shows the concentration of Family Takaful actuarial liabilities by types of
product.

Gross Retakaful Net
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

30 June 2018
Mortgage Reducing Term and Group business 40,737 (31,105) 9,632
Others 7,689 (1,750) 5,939
48,426 (32,855) 15,571

30 June 2017
Mortgage Reducing Term and Group business 29,742 (22,833) 6,909
Others 4,407 (1,482) 2,925
34,149 (24,315) 9,834
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

30 TAKAFUL RISK (CONTINUED)

(b) Eamily Takaful/Company (continued)

As all of the business is derived from Malaysia, the entire Family Takaful actuarial liabilities
are in Malaysia.

Key assumptions

Material judgment is required in determining the liabilities and in the choice of
assumptions. Assumptions in use are based on past experience, current internal data and
other published information. Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at the
date of valuation and no credit is taken for possible beneficial effects of voluntary
withdrawals. Assumptions are further evaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure
realistic and reasonable valuations.

The principles on which the valuation was made were determined by the actuary having
regard to BNM Guidelines on Valuation Basis for Liabilities of Family Takaful Business
(BNM/RH/GL 004-20) and Risk Based Capital Framework for Takaful Operators
(BNM/RH/GL 004-23).

Mortality and morbidity assumption were derived based on the understanding of actual and
expected experience and industry experience. Lapse rate assumptions are based on the
Company's experience.

Management expenses assumptions are developed based on the projection of
management expenses and new business sales for the next two years. The development
of assumptions based on expected experience in two years rather than current experience
is due to the current size of the Company and its relatively new operations.
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HONG LEONG MSIG TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Company No. 738090-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

31

FINANCIAL RISK (CONTINUED)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses owing to changes in fair value of assets or financial instruments.
The market risk factors are primarily volatility in market prices (price risk) or market profit rates
(profit rate risk). The change in market price may be caused by factor(s) specific to the
individual instrument or its issuer or factor(s) affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company adopts prudent investment policies and strategies to mitigate adverse market
risks. The investment policies guide the strategies on asset mix, asset quality, profit rate risk
exposure and liquidity targets.

(i)

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market profit rate. This risk arises due to differences in
pricing or tenure of investments and liabilities. The profit rate risk is managed through
setting the appropriate asset allocation reflecting the liability profile and the availability of
the suitable instrument in the investment market.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in profit
rates, with all other variables held constant, showing the impact on the Company’s profit
before tax and equity. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in
determining the ultimate impact on profit rate risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to
changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be
noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.

Impact on profit impact on
after taxation equity™
RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2018
Change in variables
+100 basis point of profit rate - (1,681)
-100 basis point of profit rate - 1,811
30 June 2017
Change in variables
+100 basis point of profit rate - (1,841)
-100 basis point of profit rate - 1,994

* Impact on equity reflects adjustments for tax, when applicable.
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(Company No. 738090-M)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

Ky

FINANCIAL RISK (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

)

(ii)

Profit rate risk (continued)

The impact on the company's equity arose from AFS financial assets in the Takaful
Operator's fund. The impact arising from changes in profit rate risk to AFS and FVTPL
fixed income securities of the General Takaful fund, Family Takaful fund and investment-
linked funds is retained in the Takaful contract liabilities and as such, does not impact the
profit before taxation and equity of the Company.

Price risk

The Company's price risk exposure relates to financial assets and liabilities, whose values
will fluctuate as a result of the change in market prices. Such investment securities are
subject to price risk due to changes in market values of instruments arising either from
factors specific to the individual instruments or their issuers or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market.

The Company has acknowledged the inherent risk of investing in equities. The
Management is guided with investment policies that are approved by the Board in
monitoring equity exposure and compliance with operational controls.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the fair
values of the equity investments, with all other variables held constant showing the impact
on the Company’s profit before tax and equity. The correlation of variables will have a
significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on price risk, but to demonstrate the
impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It
should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.

Impact on profit Impact on
after taxation equity*
RM'000 RM'000
30 June 2018 |
Change in variables
+20% of equity price - 1,394
-20% of equity price - (1,394)
30 June 2017
Change in variables
+20% of equity price - 842
-20% of equity price - (842)

* Impact on equity reflects adjustments for tax, when applicable.
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31

FINANCIAL RISK (CONTINUED)

Market risk {continued)

(ii)

(i)

Price risk (continued)

The impact to the Company's equity arose from Takaful Operator’s investments in equity
securities which are classified as AFS financial assets. There is no impact to the
Company's profit after taxation as the impact of changes in price risk to the equity
securities of the General Takaful fund, Family Takaful fund and investment-linked funds is
retained in the Takaful contract liabilities.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
risk management policies and procedures, systems failures, human performance failures
or from external events. The Company seeks to minimise exposure by ensuring
appropriate internal controls and systems, together with trained and competent people are
in place throughout the Company. The Company uses an established program of
comprehensive risk self-assessments in conjunction with independent internal audits to
monitor and assess inherent operational risks and the effectiveness of internal controls.
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32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Company
30.06.2018 30.06.2017
RM'000 RM'000
Approved and contracted for:
Property and equipment 229 578
229 578

33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at the reporting date, the Company and Takaful funds lease office premises under
lease agreements that are not cancellable within a year. The leases contain renewable

options.

Future minimum lease payments for leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or

more are as follows :

30.06.2018 30.06.2017
RM'000 RM'000

Within 1 year 996 991
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 1,437 1,715
2,433 2,706

Rental expenses recognised in income statement during the financial year is disclosed in

Note 22.
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34 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR

a)

b}

On 28 May 2018, the Board of Directors approved a Letter of Undertaking to be
submitted to Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM”") to increase the paid-up capital by an
additional of RM100 million by end September 2018. On 11 July 2018, the existing
shareholders have injected a total of share capital amounting to RM50 million according
to its proposed share capital structure after receiving the approval by the Ministry of
Finance and BNM for a single Family Takaful License to the Company.

The remaining share capital will be transferred according to stipulated timeline.

The Company has ceased to be a composite licensed takaful operator effective 1 July
2018.

In accordance with the legislative requirements under Islamic Financial Services Act
{("IFSA") 2013 Section 16(1), a licensed Takaful Operator ¢can no longer operate under
composite license. A licensed Takaful Operator must only carry a single license on
either a Family Takaful business or General Takaful business. A composite licensed
Takaful Operator is expected to complete the conversion exercise and operate under
single license latest by 1 July 2018, as stated in BNM's Conversion to Single Takaful
Business Guideline issued on 15 February 2016.

As part of its internal streamlining exercise, the company is planning to complete the

transfer of general business to an existing licensed Takaful operator by 30 December
2018, i.e. within six (6) months from 1 July 2018.
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